Agenda

CCR Elections Assembly

Saturday, July 14, 2018 from 11:00 AM to 4:00 PM PDT

Atascadero
RSC Officers and Delegates in Attendance
Chair Person: Scott N. Secretary: Maria C.
Vice Chair Person: | Michael F. Delegate: Jocelyn F.
Treasurer: Arnie B. Alternate Delegate:| J.T.
Groups Represented
Group Name Group Name

*Atascadero, Tuesday (131-033)

*Monterey, Saturday ¢

131-029)

Atascadero, Friday (131-03%

*Salinas, Thursday (13"

030)

Camarillo, Tuesday (131112

*Santa Barbara, Friday ¢

131-066)

*Carmel, Wednesday (31-075)

Santa Cruz, Thursday

(131-126)

Gilroy, Thursday (131009

*Scotts Valley, Friday ¢

131-025)

*Hollister, Thursday (131087

*Seaside, Monday (131-03D

Los Gatos, Sunday (131-01D

Ventura, Wednesday

131-113)

Los Gatos, Thursday (131010

*Watsonville, Wednesday ¢

131-102)

*Monterey, Tuesday (137028

* Indicates a registered group

Subcommittee Chairs in Attendance

Subcommittee Chair Present Subcommittee Chair Present
Outreach Janet S. Conventions / Events Scott C.
Literature Ruth K.
Elections (ad hoc) Scott N. GRS (ad hoc) Michael F.
Narateen

Quorum Summary

Total Groups

Registered Groups

Current Quorum

17

Agenda Summary

1. Call to Order, Prayer, Roll Call, and Readings .......ccccooouvemninrenencereereinenns

2. Adoption of Minutes of Previous ASSemMDIY .........cccoorrrnrinrernrnrineereinsinnenn.

2018-07-14_CCR_Assembly_Agenda.docx

Page 1 of 5




CCR Elections Assembly

Ag en d a Saturday, July 14, 2018 from 11:00 AM to 4:00 PM PDT
Atascadero

Be ELECHIONS ettt AR ARkttt 2
A, RSC REPOIS ...ttt s ettt ettt 3
. LUNCR RECESS ...ttt sttt bbb 3
B, RECONVENE ...ttt s ettt ettt et et sttt ne bt sent e 4
7. GrOUP REPOITS ..ottt b et a et a et e s s s et aetasaetacs 4
8. SUDCOMMITIEE REPOITS. ..ottt 4
0. AAMINISTIATION ...tttk 5
TO. AQJOUMMMENT ...ttt s bbb ss ettt 5

1. Call to Order, Prayer, Roll Call, and Readings

11:00 AM to 11:15 AM

A) Open the meeting with the Serenity Prayer

B) Roll Call / Introductions — RSC officers, delegates, subcommittee chairs, GSRs, and other
attendees

C) Announce number of voting members — Chair and Secretary
i) groups present out of a registered groups.
i) Quorum (51%) = of registered groups.

D) Reading of the Twelve Traditions

E) Reading of the Twelve Concepts of Nar-Anon Service

2.Adoption of Minutes of Previous Assembly
11:15 AM to 11:20 AM

A) A motion is requested to approve minutes for the assembly of January 12, 2018.
See the Draft Minutes of Previous Assembly section of this packet

3.Elections
11:20 AM to 11:45 AM

2018-07-14_CCR_Assembly_Agenda.docx
Page 2 of 5



CCR Elections Assembly

Ag en d a Saturday, July 14, 2018 from 11:00 AM to 4:00 PM PDT
Atascadero

A) A motion is requested to have the new officers start their term upon the bank’s acceptance of
the transfer of leadership
(Transfer of leadership is addressed in the Guide to Regional Services. However, since the
GRS has not been adopted, it is important clarify this point.)
B) Reading of positions and nominees
i)  Nominees have a chance to introduce themselves (2 minute maximum each)
ii) See attachment (CCR 2016 Elections Slate)
C) Nomination from the floor
i) Floor nominees have a chance to introduce themselves (2 minute maximum each)
D) Anonymous ballots are submitted to the subcommittee designee
E) Ballots are counted
i) Ties will be processed by a second ballot, and third if necessary
i) Persistent ties are handled by a “short straw” method
iii) Nominees elected to multiple positions, choose the position they are willing to fulfill
a) The remaining position(s) are determined by the next highest tally
F) Election chair read the results
G) A motion is requested to disband the ad-hoc elections committee

4. RSC Reports

11:45 AM to 12:30 PM

A) Chair Report — Scott N.

See Regional Chair’s Report section of this packet

i) Report on all-California meeting directory
B) Treasurer — Arnie B.

See Regional Treasurer’s Report section of this packet
C) Delegates — Jocelyn F. and J.T.

See Delegates Report section of this packet

5.Lunch Recess
12:30 PM to 1:00 PM

2018-07-14_CCR_Assembly_Agenda.docx

Page 3 of 5



CCR Elections Assembly

Ag en d a Saturday, July 14, 2018 from 11:00 AM to 4:00 PM PDT
Atascadero

60.Reconvene

1:00 PM to 1:05 PM
A) Roll Call

/.Group Reports

1:05 PM to 2:00 PM

A) Group Reports — GSRs
See Group Reports section of this packet
i) Topic for GSRs - How does your group develop and maintain a healthy and safe meeting?

8.Subcommittee Reports
2:00 PM to 3:30 PM

A) Review of the Guide to Regional Services (GRS)
See Guide to Regional Services of this packet
i) A motion is requested to adopt the Nar-Anon Central California Guide to Regional Services
(Because of the magnitude of this motion and the fact the elections section has been
previously adopted by the assembly, this motion will require a 2/3 majority to pass).
B) Conventions / Events and Outreach —Janet S. and Scott C.
See Committee Reports section of this packet
i) A motion is requested to confirm Janet S. as subcommittee chair
ii) The Conventions / Events and Outreach committees are currently operating as a single
committee until more trusted servants can be found to participate on the committees.
C) Literature — Ruth K.
See Committee Reports section of this packet
i) A motion is requested to confirm Ruth K. as subcommittee chair
D) Website and Email List Report — Scott N.
See Committee Reports section of this packet

2018-07-14_CCR_Assembly_Agenda.docx
Page 4 of 5



CCR Elections Assembly

Ag en d ad Saturday, July 14, 2018 from 11:00 AM to 4:00 PM PDT
Atascadero

9. Administration
3:30 PM to 3:50 PM

A) Next Assembly
i) January, 2019, somewhere, at some time
B) Take Back to Meeting Information and Announcements
i) Decide which items should be brought back to meeting by GSRs

10. Adjournment
Adjourn at 3:50 PM

A) Close the assembly with the Serenity Prayer

2018-07-14_CCR_Assembly_Agenda.docx
Page 5 of 5



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Draft Minutes
of the Previous
Assembly




Agenda

CCR Assembly

Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

RSC Officers and Delegates in Attendance

Chair Person: Scott N. X | Secretary: Maria C. X
Vice Chair Person: | Michael F. X | Delegate: Jocelyn F. X
Treasurer: Arnie B. X | Alternate Delegate:| J.T. X
Groups Represented
Group Name Group Name
Arroyo Grande, Tuesday (131-104 Monterey, Tuesday (131-028) Cyndy G
Atascadero, Tuesday (131-033) Larry B Monterey, Saturday (131-029) Mary M
Atascadero, Friday (131-034) Salinas, Thursday (131-030) Janet S
Carmel, Wednesday (131-075) Marylynn P Santa Barbara, Friday (131-069 Scott C
Camarillo, Tuesday (131-112) Santa Cruz, Thursday (131-126)
Gilroy, Thursday (131-009) Scotts Valley, Friday (131-02% Teri M
Hollister, Thursday (131-087) Lorri Z Seaside, Monday (131-031) Linda S
Los Gatos, Sunday (131-011) Ventura, Wednesday (137113
Los Gatos, Thursday (131-010 Watsonville, Wednesday (1*1-192 | Sondra G
* Indicates a registered group
Subcommittee Chairs in Attendance
Subcommittee Chair Present Subcommittee Chair Present
Outreach Cyndy G. X | Conventions / Events Scott C. X
Literature J.T. X | Technology Services
Narateen GRS (ad hoc) Michael F. X

Quorum Summary

Total Groups

Registered Groups

Current Quorum

18




CCR Assembly

Ag en d a Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

Agenda Summary

RSC Officers and Delegates in ATLENAANCE ...ttt s s senee 1
GrOUPS REPIESENTEM. ...ttt st s et s saees 1
Subcommittee Chairs IN ATEENAANCE ...ttt es e es s 1
QUOTUIM SUMIMIATY w.itiiieieireiseie ettt ettt bbbt eeee 1
AGENAA SUMIMATY <.ttt ettt e s s bbb saees 2
1. Call to Order, Prayer, ROl Call, aNd REAINGS .........coveveirrirririeieeeeireise sttt sss st s ssssanssns 2
2. Adoption of Minutes Of Previous ASSEMDIY ...ttt sttt ssss s ss s sssssnes 3
3. RSC REPOIS. ...ttt sttt et s sttt st ettt st st st se et st e st eenet e st sentae 3
5. RECONVENE ...ttt 5
D. GIrOUP REPOIS ...ttt sttt ettt es 5
7. SUDCOMIMUTEEE REPOIES ..ottt bbb bbbt bbb ssees 7
8. AAMINISTIATION ...ttt e bbbttt 9
0. AQJOUINIMENT ...ttt s s ssebbsbsbsess e s bbbt en s bbb sses 9

1. Call to Order, Prayer, Roll Call, and Readings

6:00 PM to 6:15 PM

A) Open the meeting with the Serenity Prayer

B) Roll Call / Introductions — RSC officers, delegates, subcommittee chairs, GSRs, and other
attendees

Present: Scott N, Michael F, Arnie B, Maria C, Jocelyn F, J.T., Larry B, Marylynn P, Lorri Z,



CCR Assembly

Ag en d a Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

Cyndy G, Mary M, Janet S, Scott C, Teri M, Linda S, Sondra G
Guest Members: Kim K (alt GSR, Monterey), Marie G (upcoming GSR Monterey)

C) Announce number of voting members — Chair and Secretary
i) __10 groups present outofa ____10 registered groups.

i) Quorum (51%) = of registered groups.

D) Reading of the Twelve Traditions — Read by Teri M
E) Reading of the Twelve Concepts of Nar-Anon Service — Read by Cindy G

2. Adoption of Minutes of Previous Assembly
6:15 PM to 6:20 PM

A) A motion is requested to approve minutes for the Vote by Email Assembly of September 2017.
See the Draft Minutes of Previous Assembly section of this packet — Scott N motioned to accept
the minutes of the September, 2017, Email Assembly. Sondra G seconded. There was no
discussion. Motion passed with 10 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions

3. RSC Reports

6:20 PM to 7:00 PM
A) Chair Report — Scott N.

See Regional Chair's Report section of this packet — This report touched on cooperation issues
regarding meetings and borders of regions, the border of Northern and Central California
regions being structural rather than geographical, This report touched on cooperation issues
regarding meetings and borders of regions emphasizing that borders are structural rather than
geographical, the need for an all-California meeting directory, and the upcoming World
Conference to which we will be sending our delegate and alternative delegate.




CCR Assembly

Ag en d a Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

i) A motion is requested to participate in an all-California meeting list for web and print
delivery. — Sondra G made a motion to participate in an all-California meeting list for web
and print delivery. Teri M seconded.

Discussion: In order to keep the central database up to date, each region could have a

person in charge of keeping a list of their region’s meetings up to date. All regions could
post the directory on their websites.

Motion passed with 10 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions
B) Treasurer — Arnie B.

See Regional Treasurer’'s Report section of this packet — The treasurer reported that the 2017
Contingency Fund of $300 went into the $525 allotted for the 2018 Monterey Convention, The
P.O. Box fee went up $6 from 2016, and in the 2018 proposed budget $1250 has been allocated

for the delegate and alternate delegate WSC expense so there will be a jump start on the next
WSO Convention.

i) A motion is requested to adopt the 2018 proposed budget. — Marylynn P made the motion
to adopt the 2018 proposed budget. Cyndy G seconded. Motion passed by 10 Ayes,

0 Nays, 0 Abstentions

ii) A motion is requested to carry over funds from the 2017 to the 2018 calendar year. — Scott
N motioned to approve the carryover of $772.35 from the 2017 budget to the 2018
budget. Teri M seconded. Motion passed by 10 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions
Scott N made a motion that any money made at this convention will go on a report and
then the GSRs will decide what to do with it at the July Assembly. Lorri Z seconded. Motion
passed with 10 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions
C) Delegates — Jocelyn F. and J.T.

See Delegates Report section of this packet — This report includes and introduction of Jocelyn F,
Delegate and J.T., Alternate Delegate along with personal goals for these positions.

The Slo Meeting is not a meeting and will be removed from the directory. The Ventura meeting
is now at 6:30, not 6:00.




CCR Assembly

Ag en d a Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

Tally sheets with WSC motions will be given to each group. A spreadsheet has been created to
prioritize what the groups see as most important. A priority list for literature will also come from
each group. There will be a group conscience taken from the region as to whether or not the
region can support sending the Delegate and Alternative Delegate to the WSC for an extra day.
The treasurer says this would work because there is $600 remaining for each of them in the 2017
budget. Teri M motioned to spend $200 - $300, not more than $300, for the delegate and the
Alternate Delegate to spend an extra day at the WSC Conference. Marylynn P seconded. Motion
passed with 10 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions  Jocelyn set up a schedule to meet with each GSR.

4. Recess
7:00 PM to 7:15 PM — 10 minute recess

5. Reconvene
7:15 PM to 7:20 PM
A) Roll Call

6. Group Reports

7:20 PM to 8:00 PM

A) Group Reports — GSRs
See Group Reports section of this packet -

Sondra G, Watsonville — There are 4-5 core people. They are trying to be bilingual. The have
been able to get Spanish literature. Their outreach consists of posters & flyers.



CCR Assembly

Ag en d a Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

Teri M, Scotts Valley — They have 10-20 members. There is a speaker the 3™ Friday of the month.
A UCSC meeting for students has started and they are helping until they can do it themselves.
They have a 12-step meeting twice a month with the goal of becoming sponsors.

Larry B, Atascadero — Meetings are 4-8 people. They want to advertise.

Lorri Z, Hollister — There are 2 core members. They have changed their location, day and time
for anonymity. They advertise on the Monterey County meet up website.

Mary M, Monterey — They have 8-15 people at meetings. They do a step study and a 4™ step
workshop came from that.

Janet S, Salinas — About 10 people average. They have spikes in attendance. There is discussion
of starting a second meeting.

Marylynn P, Carmel — Meetings are 1-4 people

Cyndy G, Monterey — There has been a slight upswing in size, mostly from the recovery center
downtown.

Linda S, Seaside — There are 4 core members but they have 7-8 people at meetings. Their new

location is good. They tried something new, socializing at other times such as game night and
hikes.



CCR Assembly

Ag en d a Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

Scott C, Santa Barbara — 15-25 people at meetings. Usually get a handful of newcomers. Have
gotten into group health. Speaker every 5" Friday. Updating service position descriptions.
Handful of people who sponsor.

7. Subcommittee Reports
8:00 PM to 8:45 PM

A) Elections Subcommittee — Scott N.

See Committee Reports section of this packet

i) A motion is requested to confirm Scott N. as ad hoc Elections Subcommittee chair. — The
committee is made up of Scott N, Scott C and Michael F. A motion is needed to confirm
Scott N as chair.

ii) A motion is requested to adopt the following sections of the draft Guide to Regional
Services in order to hold regional elections at the July 2018 elections assembly: 1) Election
RSAs, 2) RSC Officers, and 3) Regional Delegates.

a) 2/3 majority will be necessary as 1) this is elections section has been updated since the
last elections, and 2) this is a modification of a previously adopted procedure, and 3)
this is important to have a consensus on a matter of this importance.

iii) A Motion is requested to adopt the elections timeline as presented in the Nar-Anon
Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly Invitation attachment.

Scott C made a motion to confirm Scott N as Elections Subcommittee chair, to accept the
2018 timeline as outlined in the draft Guide to Regional Services and to amend the
elections guidelines in the draft Guide to Regional Services. Janet S seconded. Motion
passed with 10 Ayes, 0 Nays, 0 Abstentions

B) Guide to Regional Services — Michael F.

See Draft Guide to Regional Services section of this packet - This is still being fine tuned. The
committee believes it will have fellowship review in February and Assembly approval in July.



CCR Assembly

Ag en d a Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

C) Conventions / Events and Outreach — Cyndy G. and Scott C.
See Committee Reports section of this packet

i) The Conventions / Events and Outreach committees are currently operating as a single
committee until more trusted servants can be found to participate on the committees.

Scott C did a recap. There was a Narathon, the Bakersfield convention is still looking for a
3 PM speaker, the Hollister event, the Traditions Workshop in Santa Barbara, the current
Monterey convention. They are looking for a group to put on a 2018 Narathon.

Cindy G took over the outreach part of the committee in July. Not much attendance in the
Skype meetings. Janet S dropped pamphlets at the Monterey County Prescription Drug
Abuse & Diversion Summit in November.

D) Literature — J.T.

See Committee Reports section of this packet -
There are 5 members. Meetings are on the 2"
Sunday of each month at 8:30 AM. They
completed the MESH literature. It will be
submitted to the WSC to be printed. They are

currently working on a draft of Tradition 2.

E) Website Report — Scott N.

See Committee Reports section of this packet - Trusted servants need to join Yahoo Groups. Mail
chimp list is for all members. Been using google docs to let people sign up as volunteers. Want
to expand the website for sub-committees, etc., to use. Website has the ability to take donations.
People should let Scott N know if they have ideas of what they would like from the website. If
a meeting won't be able to take place, email Scott N and he will post it. J.T. asked 1) where
should GSRs send reports? Yahoo Groups? The Chair? Scott N says they can be sent to the




CCR Assembly

Ag en d a Friday, January 12, 2018 from 6:00 PM to 9:00 PM PST
Monterey Conference Center

chair. Subcommittees can use Yahoo Groups for storage. 2) How much time is needed to
change a meeting? Scott N says it depends. One week notice is ideal.

8. Administration
8:45 PM to 9:00 PM

A) Next Assembly
i) The next assembly is an elections assembly ii)
July, 2018, somewhere at some time —
July 14t at the Chinese Restaurant in
Atascadero. Be there at 10:30. It starts at
11:00.
B) Take Back to Meeting Information and Announcements -

i) Decide which items should be brought back
to meeting by GSRs - Elections, Delegates
WSC motions and schedule, Bakersfield
February 17th

9. Adjournment
Adjourn at 9:00 PM

A) Close the meeting with the Serenity Prayer - Meeting adjourned



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Flections
Materials

000 Elections Materials.docx



CCR 2018 Elections RSA Ballot

Updated: July 1, 2018

Use this ballot to records your group's conscience on the nominees for each position.
Print and bring this ballot to the July 14, 2018 elections assembly in Atascadero. As this
is an anonymous ballot, please do not include group information on this ballot.

Officers and Delegates

Vote for one person in each position like this -
Empty lines can be used for write-in candidates.

Chair Secretary
Michael F. () scottn. ]
) )
Vice Chair Delegate
() JoceynF. ]
Treasurer ]
Arnie B, () Atternate Delegate
(] teim ]
)

Subcommittee chairs are on the following page.

C:\Users\Scott\OneDrive\Nar-Anon\Central California Region\Elections Subcommittee\2018\CCR 2018 Elections RSA Ballot.docx

Page 1 of 2



CCR 2018 Elections RSA Ballot

Updated: July 1, 2018

Subcommittee Chairs

Vote for one person in each position like this -
Empty lines can be used for write-in candidates.

Outreach Narateen

Janet S.

Conventions / Events

Literature Scott C.

Ruth K.

Technology Services

J 0o O

Elections (ad hoc)

Scott N. Guide to Regional Services (ad hoc)

Michael F.

Jo 00 0O

JU

Officers and delegates are on the previous page.

C:\Users\Scott\OneDrive\Nar-Anon\Central California Region\Elections Subcommittee\2018\CCR 2018 Elections RSA Ballot.docx

Page 2 of 2



Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly

March 10, 2018

To all Nar-Anon Central California Region members. The following information is about
the Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 elections regional service assembly. The
assembly will be held in July of 2018 at a venue as yet to be determined.

The Elections RSAs

Elections RSAs are held in July of even numbered years to elect new RSC officers,
delegate, and alternate delegate. GSRs, being voting members, are strongly encouraged
to attend.

The Elections Process

At the November 2017 Regional Service Committee (RSC) meeting, the RSC formed an
ad hoc elections subcommittee, and established Scott N.
(Chair@NarAnonCentralCA.org) as the point of contact for the formation of the
subcommittee and requested via Take Back to Meeting Information and Announcements,
member participation in the ad hoc elections subcommittee.

At the December RSC, the elections subcommittee presented Scott N. as the interim
chair. At the January RSA, the subcommittee will present the chair for confirmation by
the assembly. The committee will present the elections agenda item and entertain
questions and comments from the assembly. After the elections RSA motion is passed,
the nomination invitation can be sent to groups via Take Back to Meeting Information
and Announcements following the March RSC meeting.

In March, the subcommittee sends notification that the nominations period is open.
Notification will include a list of open positions, suggested experience for positions,
description of positions, timeline for nomination period, and nomination email address.
A nomination invitation will be sent to GSRs via RSC Take Back to Meeting Information
and Announcements.

The member nomination process allows members to nominate themselves or other
members for one or more positions. Nominated members will be contacted by the

Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly.docx

Page 1 of 7



Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly

March 10, 2018
subcommittee. The nominated member may or may not agree to accept the

nomination. Nominations are received by the subcommittee via email.

In April, nominees who have accepted nomination submit a statement of qualifications
to the subcommittee via email.

In May, the subcommittee creates a ballot and drafts a slate of nominees for officers,
delegate, and alternate delegate for the elections RSA agenda, including each nominee’s
statement of qualifications. Ballots will allow for write-in nominees.

In June, elections subcommittee disseminates anonymous ballots to GSRs. GSRs take a
group conscience to provide guidance for selecting officers, delegate, and alternate
delegate at the elections RSA. The ballots will be sent via RSC Take Back to Meeting
Information and Announcements.

The subcommittee writes a motion for submission to the RSA to dissolve the ad hoc
elections committee at the conclusion of the elections process.

Open Positions

e Chair

e Vice Chair

e Secretary

e Treasurer

e Delegate

e Alternate Delegate

Description of Positions

Regional Officers

RSC officers are the chair, vice chair, secretary, and treasurer. Officers are elected to
serve for two years. New officers start their term upon the bank’s acceptance of the
transfer of leadership. When a GSR is elected RSC officer, they no longer serve as GSR.
To be of utmost benefit to those they serve, it is recommended that officers attend Nar-

Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly.docx

Page 2 of 7



Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly

March 10, 2018
Anon meetings on a regular basis. RSC officers may serve two full consecutive terms, in
addition to any interim term served. Interim positions have a voice and a vote on the
RSC.

Chair

The chair should have leadership and organizational skills and be capable of conducting
business meetings. Recommended experience for this position is three years continuous
service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the region bank account

e Presides over RSC and RSA

e Works with RSC to plan RSC meeting agendas

e Posts RSC meeting agenda for fellowship review on the CCR website
(http://www.NarAnonCentralCA.org)

e Submits draft RSA agendas for GSRs and RSC to add agenda items

e Submits RSA agendas to RSA and RSC

e Posts RSA agenda for fellowship review on the CCR website

e Stays informed of subcommittee activities and is available for support

e Submits approved RSA minutes to WSC Committee (wscconference@nar-
anon.org) verifying election or continued endorsement of delegate and alternate
delegate according to conference timeline

e Calls for an interim RSA whenever the RSC deems it necessary

e Isresponsible for RSC correspondence

e Has post office box access

Vice Chair

The vice chair should be willing to become chair at the end of the current chair’s term. If
the chair is unable to fulfill the position, the vice chair assumes the chair’s position for
the term’s duration or until an election RSA is held. The recommended experience for
this position is three years continuous service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly.docx

Page 3 of 7


http://www.naranoncentralca.org/
mailto:wscconference@nar-anon.org?subject=Send%20an%20Email%20to%20the%20WS%20Conference%20Committee
mailto:wscconference@nar-anon.org?subject=Send%20an%20Email%20to%20the%20WS%20Conference%20Committee

Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly

March 10, 2018
e Acts as parliamentarian for the RSC and RSA
e Assists the RSC chair in performing their duties

Secretary

The secretary keeps accurate minutes of each RSC and RSA. Recommended experience
for this position is two years of service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the region bank account

e Produces draft minutes for review by the chair within 14 days of the meeting date

e Submits preliminary RSC minutes for Chair to review

e Maintains archives of RSC and RSA minutes for incoming secretary

e Updates log of approved RSC and RSA policy motions

e Maintains a current directory of RSC and RSA members

e Collects and archives completed Group Service Representative (GSR) and Alternate
GSR Registration Forms and Area Service Committee and Regional Service Assembly
Registration Forms

e Works with the Technology Services subcommittee to maintain electronic archives
for fellowship review

e Prepares Take Back to Meeting Information and Announcements to be posted on
CCR website and emailed to GSRs and ASRs. Take Back to Meeting Information and
Announcements are information and action items from RSC and RSA. This is to
facilitate effective two-way communication between groups and other service
levels.

Treasurer

The treasurer is custodian of the RSC's finances and bank account. Recommended
experience for this position is two years continuous service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the region bank account
e Maintains records of RSC financial transactions
e Issues receipts for contributions received

Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly.docx

Page 4 of 7



Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly

March 10, 2018
e Disburses funds to cover RSC expenditures
e Submits a written report at RSC and RSA meetings of financial transactions since
prior meeting
e Presents an annual summary of income and expenses to RSC for budget planning
e Presents the RSC's proposed budget at the RSA for approval
e Prepares an appeal letter to groups, as needed, requesting contributions to cover
RSC expenses
e Assures region follows current bank standards for nonprofit accounts
e Maintains post office box
e Forwards delegates’ equalized expense to WSO by WSC's established deadline

Regional Delegates

Recommended experience for this position is a minimum of two years continuous
service as a GSR, experience as alternate delegate, experience as an area or RSC trusted
servant, and exposure to service at the world service level. Exposure to the world service
level may include observing a WS Conference or participation on a world service
committee. It is important for a delegate to have a mentor, who is a member who has
experience in service beyond the group level, who can help them understand and
navigate the service structure at the World Service level.

A delegate and alternate delegate do not hold office in the area or region. Delegate and
alternate delegate are elected to serve for two years. Delegates are elected in July of
even number years. The term of service begins following the election. The alternate
delegate should be willing to become delegate at the end of the delegate’s term. In the
event the delegate is unable to fulfill their duties the alternate delegate becomes
delegate in an interim capacity and may continue to serve two subsequent full terms.

The delegate and alternate delegate may be reimbursed for travel expenses associated
with the service commitment by submitting the Delegate and Alternate Delegate Group
Visit Expense Form (included in the Forms section at the end of this guide) to the RSC for
approval.

Delegate

Duties:

Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly.docx

Page 5 of 7



Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly

March 10, 2018
Provide two-way communication between region and WSC
Speak for members, groups, and areas within the region at the world service level
Attend RSC & RSA, and when invited, area meetings
May serve on one or more RSC subcommittees, although not as chair
Contact inactive areas to encourage region participation
Are a source of information to members, groups, areas, and region regarding
Twelve Traditions and Twelve Concepts of Service
Inform region of the Conference Agenda Report (CAR) when available
Assist groups in understanding CAR motions to obtain a group conscience
Obtain region’s groups’ consciences on CAR motions as guidance to vote at the
WSC
Region’s groups give their voice and vote to the delegate on CAR motions and
unanticipated matters at the WSC
Reports WSC results to RSC and RSA for distribution to groups
Become an active member of one or more world service committees - Budget and
Finance, Conference, Literature, Narateen, Newsletter, Outreach, Policy and
Guidelines, Website, World Convention, and World Pool

Alternate Delegate

Duties:

Perform delegate’s duties in delegate’s absence

May assist with delegate’s duties

Attend RSC & RSA, and when invited, area meetings

May serve on one or more RSC subcommittees, and may serve as chair

Attend WSC, upon approval by region and WSO, to familiarize with WSC process
Become an active member of one or more world service committees

Contact

If you have questions, suggestions, or you would like to nominate yourself or another

member, please send an email to Scott N., Chair@NarAnonCentralCA.org.

Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly.docx

Page 6 of 7



Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly

March 10, 2018
Reflection on Service

Service is not an extracurricular activity, it is a foundation of recovery. When asked the
question, “What is the heart and soul of the Twelve Steps?” One of the founders of the
original Twelve Step program answered, “That's easy, trust God, clean house, and help
other.” I hope you will consider being of service beyond the group level in order to keep
our fellowship strong and healthy for many generations to come.

In gratitude,

Scott N.

Nar-Anon Central California Region Chair
Elections Subcommittee Chair
Chair@NarAnonCentralCA.org
https://www.NarAnonCentralCA.org

Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly.docx

Page 7 of 7


mailto:Chair@NarAnonCentralCA.org
https://www.naranoncentralca.org/

Nar-Anon Central California Region

Supporting
Documents

100 Supporting Documents.docx



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Chair's Report

300 Regional Chair's Report.docx



Report from the Chair

July 9, 2018
Dear Nar-Anon Central California Assembly,

It has been a privilege and an honor to serve as your chair for the past two terms. As
with all things, a season passes and a new one begins. Though | am "termed-out" as
chair, I am looking forward to the opportunity to continue in service to the Nar-Anon
fellowship as a whole and the Central California Region in other positions as a trusted
servant.

| reflect, as the Central California Region holds its third elections assembly for RSC
officers and delegates, that part of a spiritual program is the rotation of leadership.
Rotation of leadership invites us to resist the temptation to place personalities above
principles and saves us from the dominance that might come when a member over-
affiliates with a service position over a long period of time. Rotation of leadership allows
new members to step up and take their place as a trusted servant, making their recovery
richer in experience and bringing new ideas and perspectives to the service structure.
Service is not an extracurricular activity, it is a foundation of a healthy recovery.

Another topic that is on my heart is one of a recent experience of the Santa Barbara
group, my home group. Over the past year, we experienced some disruptive members,
who without knowing it were tearing down the group by creating an unsafe
environment members and newcomers. Our group addressed the issue by Group
Conscience, the spiritual means by which we invite a loving Higher Power to influence
our decisions. The group took action, as a whole, to have individual conversations with
these members and to date we seem to have had some success.

It is vitally important that we keep our meetings healthy and safe, otherwise what
message are we really carrying? In Santa Barbara, we have an hour-long meeting each
week. With readings and announcements there is a precious and sacred forty minutes to
share our experience, strength, and hope. Experience, strength, and hope is sharing, in a
general way, the situation that caused a negative reaction in me, how | played a part in
the situation, and which Nar-Anon tools | used to get through the issue. This is the Nar-
Anon message, a message of hope. For me it is vital that | hear that message in each
and every meeting.

Report from the Chair.docx

Page 1 of 2



Report from the Chair

July 9, 2018
| acknowledge there are some times when | need to share more specifics about a

situation. This type of sharing can occur outside the meeting time through one-on-one
or group conversations, shared meals, e-mail, telephone, and sponsorship. | take the
problem to my sponsor (or Nar-Anon friend), and the solution to the meeting.

It is from this experience that | chose the topic of Healthy Meetings for our group
reports section at the assembly. | hope for an inspiring discussion of how each group
has used the Nar-Anon tools to develop and maintain a healthy and safe meeting for all.
Our common welfare has to come first!

| hope to see many of you at the assembly and | am looking forward to a wonderful
Narathon on August 25 in Aptos!

In deep gratitude,

Scott Nelson S-)

Nar-Anon Central California Region Chair
https://www.NarAnonCentralCA.org
Chair@NarAnonCentralCA.org

Report from the Chair.docx
Page 2 of 2


https://www.naranoncentralca.org/
mailto:Chair@NarAnonCentralCA.org

Nar-Anon Central California Region

lreasurer's
Report

400 Regional Treasurer's Report.docx



Central California Region, NFG

Treasurer’s Report
June 1, 2018 through July 6, 2018

June 1,2018 Balance Forward

Additions
Sharing Experience Strength & Hope
Saving Ourselves
Sweet Serenity

Total Deposits:

Subtractions
Outreach (Cyndy G)
Alternate delegate mileage (JT)
Total Subtractions:

July 6,2018 Ending Balance

Submitted by: Arnie B.
Treasurer
Nar-Anon Family Groups CCR

$4,737.57

$75.00
$90.00
$420.00

$585.00

$145.79
$57.15




Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Income Expenses

Starting Cash on Hand Budgeted Actual Remaining
Description

Cash on hand from December 31, 2017 $ 3,62335 $ 3,62335 § -
Income

Description

Narathon Annual Regional Convention and Fundraiser $ 700.00  $ 1,224.06

Group Donations $ 3,000.00 $ 1,197.96

Total Income $ 3,700.00 $ 2,422.02

Expenses

Description

Assembly $ 125.00

Outreach $ 500.00 | $ 14579 ' § 354.21
Travel expense for RSC to assembly and other required meetings $ 300.00 $ 13467 $ 165.33
Postal Services $ 76.00

Checking account expense $ 35.00

Region website expense $ 200.00

State non-profit yearly filing expense ($0.00 Online) $ -

Delegate WSC expense (equalized expense and incidentals) $ 1,250.00

Alternate Delegate WSC expense (equalized expense and incidentals) $ 1,250.00

Delegate/Alternate Delegate travel expense to groups $ 500.00 $ 366.71 | $ 133.29
Conventions $ 500.00  $ 27263 | $ 227.37
Events $ 300.00

New Meeting Start Up $ 300.00  $ 50.00 $ 250.00
Donation to WSO $ 400.00

Contingency Fund $ 300.00

Prudent Reserve (3 months operating costs) $ 515.00

Total Budgeted Expenses $ 6,551.00 $ 969.80

Ending Cash on Hand

Description

Delegate WSC expense (equalized expense and incidentals) $ 1,250.00

Alternate Delegate WSC expense (equalized expense and incidentals) $ 1,250.00

Prudent Reserve (3 months operating costs) $ 515.00

Carry-over $ 772.35

Estimated cash on hand for December 31, 2018 $ 3,78735 $ -

2018 Income & Expenses.xIsx

Printed: 7/9/18



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Delegate’s
Report

450 Regional Delegate's Report.docx



Nar-Anon Central California Region Delegate Report July 2018

As Interim Delegate for the Central California Region, | was privileged to attend the Nar-Anon World Service
Conference (WSC) held in Torrance, CA in April 2018 along with Jt, the Interim Alternate Delegate. The WSC
convenes every two years and each Nar-Anon region throughout the world is urged to send a delegate to
represent their region and to vote on the motions as proposed in the Conference Agenda Report (CAR). The
motions in the CAR come from the Nar-Anon fellowship. Prior to the conference, the CAR is distributed to every
Nar-Anon group for their group vote. The votes are compiled, and the attending region delegate voices the vote
of their region at the WSC. Reading and voting on the CAR is an important process through which each group is
given voice. Concept Two states that; the Nar-Anon Family Groups are the final authority for Nar-Anon services.
The WSC is where that authority is carried out through the voice and votes of the delegates.

The 2018 WSC included the World Service Organization staff, members of the Board of Trustees (BOT), regional
delegates, alternate delegates, a conference facilitator and observers. Attendees came from Argentina, British
Columbia, Mexico, Russia, and the US. Iran participated via Skype as they were denied entry to the US. Regional
delegates and Board of Trustee (BOT) members have voice and vote at the conference. Alternate delegates have
voice, and in the absence of the delegate, they have vote. The WSO staff, the observers and the conference
facilitator do not have a voice or vote. Regions and World Service Committees submitted 33 motions in the
Conference Agenda Report (CAR). Of those 33 motions: 24 of the motions passed, 7 motions failed, 2 motions
were withdrawn.

Recovery, service, and outreach literature receiving approval during the 2018 WSC included:

Prayer composed at WSC 2016;

Men Sharing Their Experience, Strength and Hope booklet;

Revised “Events Planning Handbook”, S-320;

Revised trifold “Facilitating a Narateen Group”, S-330;

Revised pamphlet “Twelve Tools of Recovery”, P-115;

Revised “Website Handbook”, S-318;

Several revisions in the Nar-Anon Guides to Local and World Services (mostly for clarification
and consistency) including changes to the Narateen sections.

A complete and detailed list of the motions and their outcomes are in the 2018 WSC minutes, which will be
available on the www.naranon.org website (under Members, World Service Conferences). Attending the
conference was a great opportunity to grow in my own recovery and to serve the fellowship. The Central California
Region continues to grow both in numbers of groups and in attendance of groups.

| am pleased to have been part of the Regional Service Committee, as a GSR first and currently as Interim Delegate.
| will continue to make strengthening and supporting the groups in our region a priority, in our shared commitment
to our primary purpose of helping families of addicts.

Please feel free to contact me if you need further information.
In service,

Jocelyn F. — Delegate Central California Region


http://www.naranon.org/

2018 CAR (Conference Agenda Report)

Motion # Maker Brief Description Carried Failed Withdrawn

1 WSC 2016 |To develop a process to streamline the motions and reduce the amount of reading required X

2 WSC 2016 |Replace wording about Open/Closed Meetings in the GLS X

3 WSC 2016 |Accept prayer composed at WSC 2016 X

4 WSC 2016 |Abbreviate Narateen as Nt X
5 WSC 2016 |ldentify what is a policy and what is a guideline in CAL X
6 Argentina |Permission to use NA CAL for the Twelve Concepts until Nar-Anon 36 is complete X
7 Argentina  |Replace wording in Step One to "We admitted we were powerless over addiction..." X
8 N&S Carolina |Allow Delegate and Alternate Delegate to vote at the RSC X

9 Northern CA |Insert wording in the GLS section How to Start a Nar-Anon Group to consider the welfare of other groups X
10 Northern CA |Replace wording in the GLS section Area Structure to consider impact on other groups X
11 Southern CA |Insert wording in the GLS section Regional Structure, subsection Assemblies, "at the assembly" X
12 Southern CA |Changes and additions to the Event Planning Handbook S-320 to be more comprehensive X

13 Southern CA |Insert wording in the GLS section Area Structure to assist in creating or dividing a Nar-Anon Area X

14 WS Literature |Add wording in the GWS section Recovery Literature to allow writings not on the Priority List to be considered X

15 WS Literature |Insert wording in the GWS section The Twelve Tools of Recovery to correct the language on anonymity X

16 WS Literature |Change wording in GWS section Recovery Literature to clarify the recovery literature review process X

17 WS Literature |Approve the reading card "We've Been There" X
18 WS Literature |Approve the booklet "Men Sharing Their Experience, Strength and Hope" X

19 WS Narateen |Replace the Narateen Group section in the GWS X
20 WS Narateen |Replace the WS Narateen Safety Guidelines section in the GWS with WS Narateen Safety Policy and Guidelines X
21 WS Narateen |Revise the Narateen brochure Facilitating a Narateen Group and rename Narateen Group Information X
22 WS Narateen |Insert wording on the Narateen Group Registration Form to reference the GLS X
23 WS P&G Revise wording in the GLS Delegates section and add a WS Committees email list to the back of the book X
24 WS P&G Revise wording in the GWS Qualifications of a Trustee section to make the service requirement clear X
25 WS P&G Replace the GLS Anonymity section to clear up language and remove unncessary information X
26 WS P&G Revise wording in the GLS Registration of Group section to remove Narateen which has a new section X
27 WS P&G Add new subsection in the GLS Literature section under Conference Approved Literature, "Draft/Review Lit" X
28 WS P&G Revise wording in the GWS subsection Development & Approval Process... to advise fellowship of status X
29 WS P&G Replace the subsection Narateen Participation in the GLS X
30 WS P&G Replace subsection Approval Process for Recovery Literature in the GWS X
31 WS P&G Replace the Website Handbook X
32 WS Trustee |Replace World Service Committees section in the GWS X

Addendum

Motion # Maker Description For Against  Abstain
A-1 WSC 2016 |Change wording in the GWS tally process section to amend Tradition 4 "...or Nar-Anon as a whole" X




Traditions 1-12 for Nar-Anon 36

Fourth Step workbook*

Traditions Booklet

Concepts 1-12 for Nar-Anon 36

Parents of Addicted Minors*

Addiction in marriage*

Narateen - Steps 1 - 12

What Now? (When active addiction ends)*

Narateen - 31 Days

Adult Children of Addicts*

The Seasons of the Year - Spring

After Treatment*

7th Tradition pamphlet*

Just for Today bookmark*

Grandparents' Stories - The Family Disease
Across Generations

A New Daily Reader (using miscellaneous
writings we receive)

Narateen Do's & Don'ts Bookmark*

An asterisk * indicates we do not have writings for the piece,



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Meeting
Directory




ATASCADERO

HOLLISTER

The Redeemer Lutheran Church
4500 El Camino Real
Atascadero, CA 93422

Park in back. Meets downstairs.
Tuesdays, 6:00 PM

The Redeemer Lutheran Church
4500 El Camino Real
Atascadero, CA 93422

Park in back. Meets downstairs.
Fridays, Noon

CAMARILLO

Oasis Gym

190 Maple Street

Hollister, CA 95023

Enter on right hand side of building, third door
down. Contact: HollisterNarAnon@Gmail.com.
Thursdays, 7:00 PM

LOS GATOS

Camarillo Health Care District
3639 Las Posas Road
Camarillo, CA 93010

Building E - Suite 117
Thursdays, 7:00 PM

CARMEL

Carmel Presbyterian Church
Junipero Street, CA 93953

On Junipero across from Carmel Plaza. In church
building on street level, enter from
sidewalk/parking lot through glass doors.
Wednesdays, Noon

GILROY

Faith Lutheran Church

16548 Ferris Avenue

Los Gatos, CA 95032

Meets in Room 15. Enter through back of
parking lot.

Sundays, 7:00 PM

Mission Oaks Hospital

15891 Los Gatos Almaden Road
Los Gatos, CA 95032

Mission Oaks Hospital (2nd Floor).
Thursdays, 7:30 PM

MONTEREY

First Baptist Church
8455 Wren Avenue
Gilroy, CA 95020

Meets in room 202.
Thursdays, 7:30 PM

St. James Episcopal Church

381 High Street

Monterey, CA 93940

Large wooden house, use back door, and
upstairs.

Tuesdays, 6:30 PM

MONTEREY

St. Timothy Lutheran Church

52 Soledad Drive

Monterey, CA 93940

Newcomers welcome at 8:45 AM.
Saturdays, 9:00 AM

SALINAS

Lincoln Avenue Presbyterian Church
536 Lincoln Avenue

Salinas, CA 93901

Thursdays, 6:30 PM

SANTA BARBARA

Trinity Evangelical Lutheran Church
909 North La Cumbre Road

Santa Barbara, CA 93110

Fridays, 6:00 PM

SANTA CRUZ

Sutter Hospital

2900 Chanticleer Avenue

Santa Cruz, CA 95065

Meets in Sutter Room. Newcomers, please come
15 minutes early to get acquainted. Walk in the
front door and head for the back door - you'll see
our sign!

Sundays, 6:30 PM



SCOTTS VALLEY

The Camp Recovery Center
3192 Glen Canyon Road
Scotts Valley, CA 95066
Meets in Bison Center.
Fridays, 6:30 PM to 7:45 PM

SEASIDE

WHAT IS NAR-ANON?

Monterey Peninsula Buddhist Temple

1155 Noche Buena Street

Seaside, CA 93955

Parking in the rear. Meeting in smaller building
on the left as you enter the temple gates.
Mondays, 6:30 PM

VENTURA

21 North Dunning Street

Ventura, CA 93003

Meeting is held in the Parish House, side room
facing Dunning.

Wednesdays, 6:30 PM

WATSONVILLE

Lutheran Community Church

95 Alta Vista Avenue

Watsonville, CA 95076

(831) 200-3756

The meeting is held in Adam Dan Hall in back of
the church. More information: (831) 200-3756
and WatsonvilleNarAnon@Gmail.com.
Wednesdays, 6:00 PM

Meeting day, time, and venue are subject to
change without notice. Please visit the WSO
website for the latest meeting information,
www.Nar-Anon.org.

Meeting List Updated 6/11/2018

Are you sick and tired of being sick and tired? Have
you tried everything you can think of to change the
addict and nothing seems to work? Don’t give up.
There is hope. You are at a turning point. If you
would like your life to be different, Nar-Anon can
offer you a better way to live. You will meet people
at Nar-Anon meetings who understand your
frustration.

Nar-Anon is a fellowship for families and friends of
addicts whose lives have been or are being
affected by someone else’s addiction.

The Nar-Anon Family Group is primarily for you
who know or have known a feeling of desperation
concerning the addiction problem of someone
very near to you.

When you come into the family group, you are no
longer alone but among true friends who
understand your problem as few others could. We
will respect your confidence and anonymity, as we
know you will respect ours. We hope to give you
the assurance that no situation is too difficult and
no unhappiness is too great to be overcome.

Excerpt taken from Affected by a Loved One’s
Addiction? © 2016 Nar-Anon Family Group

Headquarters, Inc.

Nar-Anon Family Group Headquarters, Inc.
23110 Crenshaw Blvd. Suite A
Torrance, CA 90505
(310) 534-8188 — (800) 477-6291
www.Nar-Anon.org

Nar-Anon Family Groups
Central California Region

Meeting Directory

Nar-Anon offers hope for
relatives and friends of addicts

www.NarAnonCentralCA.org



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Group Reports

oooooooooooooooooooo



To: Scott N. Chair@naranoncentralca.org

Circle of Hope NFD Group 13129 Monterey, CA
Financial Report 1/1-6/30/2018 for General Assembly:

Monthly Prudent

Net *: Reserve: Expenses Paid:
January Rent Paid
2018: $279.00 | $200.00 ($60.00 Mo.) -$360.00
February Area
2018: $396.00 | $200.00 Donation
March Paid to Aptos
2018: $469.00 | $200.00 Nar-Athon
April 8/25/2018
2018: $368.00 | $200.00 -$150.00
May Nar-Anon
2018: $451.00 | $200.00 Literature
June Purchase
2018: $448.00 | $200.00 3/2018 -$179.00

On July 7, 2018:

Cash Total: Expenses Paid:

Net Cash +$138.00 Rent 7/7/2018 | Nar-Anon
Prudent Reserve +$200.00 Region
Donation
7/7/2018
-$150.00

Nar-Anon
World
Service
Donation
7/7/2018
-$60.00 -$100.00

Grand Total
-$250.00



mailto:Chair@naranoncentralca.org

Balance Forward*: $338.00 Expenses Paid: -$310.00

*After Expenses Paid



“IN THE SOLUTION” — Group #131-028

6:30pm — St. James Episcopal Church — 381 High Street, Monterey CA 93940

HISTORY: First meeting was on 8/2/11 at St. James Church, upstairs.
ATTENDANCE: Ranges from 8 — 12 members.

NEWCOMERS: Most seem to learn about this meeting through other meetings, Outreach
literature, internet and NA refers people on occasion. Some newcomers have heard of Nar-
Anon from the after care groups and Outreach panels done at the local recovery centers.

MEETING FORMAT: On the first Monday of each month, reading of a Step from the
Nar-Anon Twelve Step Program booklet that corresponds with the month. Readings from
the SESH book, brochures and other CAL approved literature during the other meetings.
Business meetings are held the first Tuesday of each month.

TREASURER REPORT: Period coveredis 1/1/2018 — 6/30/2018
Previous Balance ........ccceevveiiiiiiiinnnnnn. $ 115.06
Collected: 7™ Tradition & Literature sold + 549.03
Subtotal.... $ 664.09

Disbursed: RentPaid . .. ... ... .. - 150.00
Literature and misc . . . . . . - 164.09
WSO Donation. . . . .. .. - 25.00
Region (CCR) Donation . . . - 75.00
Forwarding Balance............cccccvvenneenn. $ 250.00

Prudent Reserve - $75.00 & GSR Travel Fund - $75.00
DONATIONS: To WSO and the REGION are done every 6 months.

SUBMITTED BY: Cyndy, GSR
Chris, Treasurer

DATED: July 7,2018



Thursday Sweet Serenity
Group Report #131-030
Salinas
June 7, 2018

History: The group began meeting in April 2011. Meetings moved from First
Methodist (second location) to Lincoln Avenue Presbyterian in August 2016 and
this location remains a cooperative, welcoming site.

Attendance: Meeting attendance is stable with an average of 10. Service
rotation occurs every three months, with the last rotation taking place in May.

Format: A step is read and discussed each month on the fourth Thursday (using
the yellow step booklet) and the daily reading from the SESH book other weeks.
Another piece of conference approved literature is selected when there is a fifth
Thursday in a month.

Treasurer Report: As of June 7, the balance was $520, not including the
prudent reserve ($150) and GSR funds ($50). Donations were made to the
Region ($420) and WSO ($50). Monthly rent is $50. Group conscience agreed to
set aside $50 to provide a gift basket for the August Narathon.

Successes and Challenges:

e New people attend every few of months with approximately one returning on
a continual basis. The group has noticed that a few new people, who prefer to
speak Spanish, have attended but do not return.

e A group inventory was conducted last February. An area of growth, as well as
an area of interest, is to consider expanding our reach by supporting a new
group in the Salinas-Salinas Valley area. Members are researching possible
locations, including faith-based sites serving Spanish-speakers.

e Recent efforts, such as encouraging sponsorship through the phone list and
reading CAL on sponsorship and 12 Concepts, have helped introduce and
expand members’ understanding of Nar-Anon'’s tools.

Submitted by: Janet S., GSR



SOS (Saving OurSelves) Nar-Anon Family Group
(Group ID 131-024)
6:30-8:00 PM Sunday
Sutter Hospital
2900 Chanticleer Avenue
Santa Cruz, CA 95065

July 2018 report

Meeting: We meet in the Sutter Room on the first floor of Sutter Hospital (aka Sutter Maternity &
Surgery Center of Santa Cruz). This meeting has been in existence over 14 years and joined the Central
California Region in January 2018.

Attendance: Our group attendance has varied from 1-12 with about 5 semi-regulars.

Newcomers: We have had several newcomers in the last 6 months with a couple newcomers returning
fairly regularly.

Format: We have a rotating format and are trying to setup speakers for Week 5 meetings. We have
incorporated the Nar-Anon CAL ‘blue card’ readings at the start of the meeting (About Addiction, 12
Steps, 12 Traditions, Keeping Our Meetings Healthy) and rotate the other readings (Just For Today, The
Family, Changing Ourselves, Helping) in on a weekly basis.

Donations: Our group has made 2 quarterly donations to WSO and the Central California Region since
we have joined. We have sent $120 to CCR and $80 to WSO in March and $90 to CCR and $60 to WSO in
June.

Treasury: We currently have $195 in the treasury.

Other Information: Our group decided by group conscience to assemble items for a basket for the raffle
and one of the newcomers stepped up and offered to assemble it. It has been difficult to get people to
sign up for service positions although someone has always been willing with a direct ask to cover
chairing the meeting. We used to be able to store the meeting boxes in the room but we now have to
take everything in and out and so have pared down to the meeting essentials so we don’t have to lug so
much stuff back and forth.

In conjunction with the Outreach Committee, we have been trying to update the meeting information in
the local Times Publishing Group publications. Although it is still not totally correct, the phone number
and website is updated.



“Monday Nite Miracles” — Group #13131

6:30pm — Monterey Peninsula Buddhist Temple, 1155 Noche Buena St., Seaside CA 93955

HISTORY: First meeting was on 10/26/09 in the office room of St Francis Xavier Church.
ATTENDANCE: Ranges from 2 — 7 approximately.

NEWCOMERS: Most seem to learn about this meeting through other meetings, Outreach
literature, internet and NA refers people on occasion. Some newcomers have heard of Nar-
Anon from the after care groups and Outreach panels done at the local recovery centers. A
couple of our meeting members are regulars on a panel for Genesis House in Seaside.

MEETING FORMAT: On the first Monday of each month, reading of a Step from the
Nar-Anon Twelve Step Program booklet that corresponds with the month. Readings from
the SESH book, Sharing the Slogans, brochures and other CAL approved literature during
the other meetings. Business meetings are held the first Monday of each month.

TREASURER REPORT: Period covered is 1/1/2018 to 6/30/2018
Previous Balance ........ccccoiiiiiiiiiinennnnn. $171.00
Collected: 7™ Tradition & Literature sold + 174.00
Subtotal.... $345.00

Disbursed: RentPaid . . ... ... ... - 60.00
Literature purchased . . . . . - 70.00
WSO Donation. . . . .. .. - 0.00
Region (CCR) Donation . . . - 0.00
Forwarding Balance...........cccccevinnennnn. $215.00

Included in the forwarding balance is:
Prudent Reserve - $50.00 + GSR Travel Fund - $50.00

DONATIONS: To WSO and REGION done 2 or 3 times a year.
SUBMITTED BY: Linda S., GSR

DATED: July 6, 2018



Watsonville Nar-Anon Meeting

Watsonville, Wednesdays 6:00 - 7:00pm

History: Our first meeting was held on April 27, 2016 at the Watsonville Main
Library Meeting Room. We have since moved twice and are now at the Lutheran
Community Church in Watsonville. We are currently looking for a new meeting
place, one that hopefully will be accessible to a wider area.

Attendance: Our meeting is still small with occasional drop-ins and newcomers.

Treasury: Treasury balance as of July 1, 2018 is $215.00. By group conscience we
have decided to keep a prudent reserve of $150. Our rent now runs $10 a week.

Format: Readings are taken from the SESH Book, pamphlets and the Twelve Steps.
Speaker meetings are scheduled when possible.

Outreach: Our meeting is currently working with the other Santa Cruz meetings on
the August Narathon. Members also volunteer at the annual N.A. “Pig Roast” in
Salinas in August.

Successes and Challenges: It has continued to be a challenge to try to attract
Hispanics as well as Anglos to our meeting. We found out that there are 3 Spanish
Al-Anon meetings in our area and believe they are where most of the Hispanics are
attending. This is one reason we are trying to relocate our meetings: so that people
might find it easier to come down from the Aptos area (which is primarily Anglo).

Submitted: July, 2018 by Sondra, GSR.



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Subcommittee
Reports




Nar-Anon Central California Region

Guide to
Regional
Services

Subcommittee
Report

SSSSSSSSSSS



NAR-ANON FAMILY GROUPS’

GUIDE TO REGIONAL SERVICES

CENTRAL CALIFORNIA REGION

Approved M/D/YYYY




TABLE OF CONTENTS

LY oo 18 o1 1 o] o P PP 6
LCT (0T B] o Y € (o3 PP 6
Group Service RepresentativeS (GSR) ....cuuiu i 6
] 7
AITEINALE GSR ... ittt ettt e 7
SUBSTITULE GSR ... et ea s 7
HEAITNY MEETINGS ... ceeeeee ettt ettt e et e e e e e e een s 8
T o TH ] I T = Lo 8
PrUdENT RESEIVE ... ittt e e e 8
USE OF GroUP FUNGS .. .oeeieee ettt e e e e 9
ATEA STIUCTUIE ...eeieiiie e e e r s e e e e e e e e e 10
Area Service COMMITIEE (ASC) . iuir it e 10
ASC OFFICRIS ettt ettt e 11
INTEIIM OFFICEIS .. ettt eans 12
Removal and Resignation of OffiCers.........ovuuiiiiiiii e 12
ASC MBEBTINGS . eteee ettt ettt et e et et et et e e e e et e e e e e anas 13
EIECtION ASC MEETINGS. ... ceueet ettt ettt e e e e e ea e eaeees 14
INTEFIM ASC MEETINGS ..evniieiei e e e e e e e eaeeens 16
NON-Area AffilIated GrOUPS ......oeuiiiii e e e e e eaa e 16
REGIONAI STIUCTUIE ..ottt e e e e 17
Regional Service COMMItLEE (RSC) .....iuniiiiii e e 17
RSC OFfICEIS .t 17
INTEIM OFFICEIS .. e e e eans 19
Removal and Resignation of OffiCers........coivuiiiiii e 20
ST O Y == 1 o TP 20
RSC PoliCies and ProCEAUIES.........ieuit ittt eae e 21
FINANCIAI POICIES ... et eans 22
SUDCOMMITEEES ...ttt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e ena s 24

Page 2 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services




Removal and Resignation of Subcommittee Chairs...........cc.ccovviiiiiiiiiniciiinens 25

RegIioNal DEIEGALES ........uieeeiei e 29
D= 1= -1 (= PP 30
AITErNALE DEIEGALE .......eeiiee it 30

Regional Service ASSEMDBIY (RSA) ... e 30
LCT o 18] o TN (=T 0 53 1 = L o o P 31
SUDSTITULE GSR ...t e enas 32
RSA AGENAAS ... ettt ettt et et ea e 32
EIECTION RSAS ..ottt e e e e e e 32
INEEIIM RSAS L.ttt e e e enas 34

R TST Yol PRSP 35

Twelve Concepts Of Nar-ANON SEIVICE .....c.uviiuniieiieii e e 35

RS 0] 0 1T0] 51 211 35

Y L= 1] £ PP 35
Guidelines for Selecting SPEAKETS ... .c.uiiii it 36
Guidelines for Nar-Anon SPEAKEIS.......ccuiiuiii e 36
Guidelines TOr NA SPEAKEIS. . ... cuie ettt e e e ens 37
Nar-Anon Outreach SPEaKiNg.........cuu i 37

ADDreVviationNS & ACIONYMIS ... ..t e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eaneeanaes 38
Forms:

- Nar-Anon Central California Region Group Service Representative (GSR) and
Alternate GSR Registration Form

- Nar-Anon Central California Region Area Service Committee and Regional Service
Assembly Registration Form

- Nar-Anon Central California Region Group/Area Contribution Form
- Nar-Anon Central California Region Group/Area/Region Contribution Form

- Nar-Anon Central California Region Regional Service Committee Travel Expense
Form

Page 3 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services



PREAMBLE

The Nar-Anon Family Groups are a worldwide fellowship for those affected by someone
else’s addiction.

As a twelve step program — we offer our help by sharing our experience, strength, and
hope.

We carry the message of hope by letting others know that they are not alone; by
practicing the Twelve Steps of Nar-Anon; and by changing our own attitudes.

We will respect your anonymity.

Our program is not a religious one, but a spiritual way of life.

MISSION STATEMENT

The Nar-Anon Family Groups are a worldwide fellowship for those affected by someone
else’s addiction. As a Twelve Step Program, we offer our help by sharing our
experience, strength, and hope.

VISION STATEMENT

We will carry the message of hope throughout the world to those affected by the
addiction of someone near to them.

We do this by:

e Letting them know they are no longer alone.

e Practicing the Twelve Steps of Nar-Anon.

e Encouraging growth through service.

e Making information available through outreach encompassing public information,
hospitals, institutions, and websites; and

e Changing our own attitudes.



NAR-ANON SERVICE STRUCTURE

RN E AR AR EEE R EEEEEEEE RS EEEEEEEEEEEEgEsEEEEEEEEEEEEEg
- - L -
H H . H

Group Service
Representatives (GSRs)

Group Group Group Group
* *
"“ ..0’ “‘ ..0
* * * *
* * * *
“ .0 “ .0
* * * *
" .0 “ .'
LIRS LIRS

Area Service Committee (ASC)

Non-Area Affiliated Area Service

GSRs [VM]
Area Service Rep. (ASR) [NVMV]

Groups Subcommittee Committee (ASC)
O"" '.‘.0
" 0‘
" 0’
“ 0’
* 0’
” .0
“ ‘0
“ ’0
0" R .0

Regional Service
Committee (RSC)

NN NN NN SN NN NN EEE NN NN SN NN NN NN EEE NN EEEE NN EEEE NN EEEEEENEEEEEEEEEEEEEEE
*
-

rnnaas ..@onal AsseD........,

A

Area Officers [NVMV]
Area Committee Chairs [NVMV]

(Regional Service Committee (RSC) )

ASRs [VM]

Regional Officers [VM]

Regional Committee Chairs [VM]
Delegate [VM]

\Alternate Delegate [VM]

J

(Regional Service Assembly (RSA) \

GSRs [VM]

ASRs [NVMV]

Regional Officers [NVMV]

Regional Committee Chairs [NVMV]
Delegate [NVMV]

KAIternate Delegate [NVMV]

J

-

World Service veee
Conference (WSC)

(" w

~

orld Service Conference (WSC)

kWorId Service Committee Chairs [NVMLV] )

Delegates [VM]

Nar-Anon Trustees [VM]

Alternate Delegates [NVMV]
Nar-Anon Executive Director [NVMLV]

Key

[VM] - Voting Member with Voice
[NVMV] — Non-Voting Member with Voice
[NVMLV] — Non-Voting Member with Limited Voice

Page 5 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services




Introduction

The Central California Guide to Regional Services (CCGRS) is guided by the Nar-Anon
Family Groups Guide to Local Services (GLS) and Guide to World Services (GWS). Where
there are differences, the GRS supersedes the GLS and GWS.

The purpose of the CCGRS is to guide regional trusted servants in service elements of
this region that make it distinct and unique from other regions. The GLS and GWS are
the main guiding documents for the region and the CCGRS is meant to work in conjunction
with and not replace the GLS and GWS. As the GLS and GWS are modified by the
Conference, the Regional Service Committee (RSC) shall revisit the CCGRS to assure it is
in agreement with the principles and direction of the GLS and GWS.

The CCGRS can be modified by a two-thirds majority vote of the assembly. Spelling,
grammatical, and formatting changes that do not change intent of the document can be
made at the direction of the RSC with notification to the RSA as an agenda item.

Group Structure

Organizing a group should be kept simple. Officers are elected by group conscience to
serve for a period decided by the group, often from two to six months. Regular rotation
of service in positions throughout the fellowship gives members the privilege of serving.
Officers are trusted but servants, as they do not govern. Groups need a meeting leader,
sometimes called a chair or secretary. A group may also need a member to act as
secretary. The secretary often acts as treasurer until the group is large enough to divide
duties among other members. Each group also needs a group service representative who
participates in the wider service organization of Nar-Anon.

Group Service Representatives (GSR)

The GSR is a vital link in continuing the functioning, growth, and unity of the worldwide
Nar-Anon fellowship. It is suggested that GSRs are elected by their groups for a two-year
term for consistency of rotation with the area and region; however, group conscience will
determine the actual length of service.

GSRs should be members with experience and continuity in the Nar-Anon program and
an understanding of the Twelve Traditions and Twelve Concepts of Service. It is
suggested that each group have an alternate GSR.

Page 6 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Group Structure



GSR

Duties:

e Becomes familiar with the Nar-Anon Guides for Local, Regional, and World Services

e Attends ASC meetings and RSAs, then reports information to the group

e Votes their group’s conscience at ASC meetings and RSA

e Completes and submits the GSR registration form to the Regional Service
Committee (RSC) secretary (a sample form is found at the end of the GLS -
http://www.nar-anon.org/service-literature/)

e Brings group’s viewpoint on any situation or problem to area meetings or RSA

e Reads regional 7ake Back to Meeting Information and Announcements during
announcements period at group meetings. It is suggested announcements are
made over three consecutive weeks. A hard copy might be left in the meeting
notebook, in case the GSR and alternate GSR are not in attendance.

When a GSR is elected to be an ASC officer, RSC officer, delegate, or alternate delegate
they no longer serve as GSR.

Alternate GSR

Duties:

e Becomes familiar with the Nar-Anon Guides for Local, Regional, and World Services
e Perform GSR’s duties in GSR’s absence

e Attend RSA and area meetings

e May serve on one or more RSA or RSC subcommittees, and may serve as chair

e Should be willing to become GSR at the end of the current GSR’s term

When an Alternate GSR is elected to be an ASC officer, RSC officer, delegate, or alternate
delegate they no longer serve as Alternate GSR.

Substitute GSR

A Substitute GSR provides their group with a voice and a vote at an ASC meeting or RSA
for which they are registered. This is consistent with one vote per group. The Substitute
GSR will report back to the group as the GSR would. Only the process of registration,
utilizing the Area Service Committee and Regional Service Assembly Registration Form
found in back of the GRS, authorizes the Substitute GSR. Authorization for substitution is
only valid for one ASC or RSA.

Page 7 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Group Structure


http://www.nar-anon.org/service-literature/

Healthy Meetings

Every group may be a little different from another. Groups choose which pieces of
Conference Approved Literature (CAL) are read at their meetings. Groups decide the
number of meetings held per week and how long meetings last. Each group is
autonomous but still has a responsibility to work within Nar-Anon guidelines. Imagine
that all Nar-Anon groups make up one worldwide meeting. Every member should be able
to attend any meeting in the world and feel welcome and safe, knowing they have the
support of the entire Nar-Anon fellowship. To understand how to have a healthy group,
we need to be aware of what leads to unhealthy meetings.

Healthy Meetings:

e Start and end on time

e Read steps and traditions at each meeting

e Read only from Conference Approved Literature (CAL)

e Hold step and tradition study meetings

e Hold regular business meetings (see GLS sections 4-3 through 4-5)

e Become familiar with the Guide to Local Services and Guide to Regional Services
e Encourage sponsorship

* Respect each member’s viewpoint

For a better understanding of what a healthy group is, view the following service
documents on the WSO website at this URL: http://www.nar-anon.org/service-literature/

Service literature for meetings:

» Appropriate Sharing & Crosstalk (S-308)

» Guidelines for Healthy Meetings (S-303)

e Let’s Talk About Anonymity (S-307)

e Nar-Anon Group Inventory (S-316)

e Sample Format for Beginner Meetings (S-319)

o Sample Format for Nar-Anon Meetings (S-304)

e Group Conscience and Business Meetings (S-305)

Group Finances

Prudent Reserve

A prudent reserve is an agreed upon amount to be held in reserve for operating expenses.
Operating expenses vary depending on the group conscience. Operating expenses are
costs that allow operations to continue, not budget items. It is suggested that a prudent
reserve equal three months of the group’s operational expenses, which may include the
following:

Page 8 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Group Structure


http://www.nar-anon.org/service-literature/

e Rent
e Literature
e Travel expense for GSR to RSA

e Qutreach
e Photocopying, postage
e Website

Each group decides its prudent reserve with a group conscience. It is suggested that
monies accumulated in excess of the prudent reserve be sent to the next service levels
based on a group conscience (see Donations to Area, Region, and WSO section).

Use of Group Funds
Meeting Space
The Seventh Tradition suggests that groups pay for its meeting space. Providing Nar-

Anon/Narateen Conference Approved Literature (CAL) to a facility is an appropriate
alternative where monetary payments may not be accepted.

Literature

Groups purchase CAL from WSO for use at meetings, outreach, and to sell to members.
Donations to WSO may be included with literature orders. Only CAL may be purchased
with group funds.

GSR Travel Expenses
Group funds may be used to pay for the GSR’s travel expenses to RSAs.
Donations to Area, Region, and WSO

Group support of the fellowship is accomplished through regular donations to the area,
region, and WSO. Groups may choose to allocate funds in excess of the group’s budget
and prudent reserve for donation beyond the group level. Two suggestions are to send
the following percentages to service arms.

e 75% to area
e 15% to region
e 10% to WSO

In the event there is no area:

e 80% to region
e 20% to WSO

Page 9 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Group Structure



Some groups send quarterly donations. Group conscience determines the group’s actual
donations and when donations are given. Areas may pass on donations in excess of
their budget to the region and WSO. The region may pass on donations in excess of
their budget to the WSO. Groups, areas, and the region may include the Group/Area
and Group/Area/Region Contribution Forms (included in the Forms section at the end of
this guide) when sending donations to the region and WSO.

Refreshments and Supplies
Group funds may be used to purchase refreshments and supplies for group purposes.
Childcare

Some members must bring their children to meetings. Using group funds or taking a
special collection to pay for childcare at meetings is within a group’s autonomy.

Gifts to Members

Group funds are only used for group purposes, not for personal gifts to members, such
as baby showers, flowers for the sick, or financial assistance to needy members. Members
may provide such gifts on an individual basis outside the group.

Area Structure

An area is a network of groups that have joined together to support each other, provide
a single point of communication, and facilitate two-way communication between groups
and region. The formation of an area rests solely with the groups.

Area Service Committee (ASC)

The ASC’s purpose is to develop, coordinate, and maintain services on behalf of the Nar-
Anon groups it serves. The ASC plans for general improvement of groups by holding
regular business meetings. ASC members perform duties described in this guide and
follow parliamentary procedures (Robert’s Rules of Order). Its members strive to work
for the common good of Nar-Anon as a whole, guided by the conscience of their groups,
and are bound by the Twelve Traditions and Twelve Concepts of Service.

State laws require a minimum of chair, treasurer, and secretary positions for any

committee needing banking services; therefore, an ASC cannot exist without these
positions filled.

Page 10 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Area Structure



ASC Officers

ASC officers are the area service representative (ASR), secretary, and treasurer. The ASR
is the ASC chair. Officers are elected to serve for two years. New officers’ terms start as
soon as bank requirements are fulfilled in approximately thirty to sixty days after the
election ASC meeting. When a GSR is elected to be an ASC officer, they no longer serve
as GSR. To be of utmost benefit to those they serve, it is recommended that officers
attend Nar-Anon meetings on a regular basis. ASC officers may serve two full consecutive
terms, in addition to any interim term served.

Area Service Representative (ASR)

The chair should have leadership and organizational skills and be capable of conducting
business meetings. Recommended experience for this position is a minimum of one term
as a GSR.

Duties:

e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the area bank account
e Presides over ASC meetings
e Stays informed of subcommittee activities and is available for support
e Attends RSC and RSA
- Votes area’s group conscience
- Brings matters of group misunderstandings or concerns
- Reports on area activities, outreach, events and a financial summary
e Visits area groups providing support and direction, particularly new groups
e Supports members starting new groups
e Works with groups to understand and apply the Twelve Traditions and Twelve
Concepts
e Provides a current GSR contact list to RSC secretary
e Reminds GSRs to update group registration form on the WSO website
e Verifies disbanded groups to the RSC and WSO
e Assists the delegate in informing GSRs regarding WSO activities and WSC process
and results
e Responsible for committee correspondence
e Has post office box access

An ASR may be a region officer. If an ASR holds office at the regional level, they may
only vote as an ASR at RSC meetings. An ASR may not vote at an RSA.

Secretary

The secretary keeps accurate ASC meeting minutes. Recommended experience for this
position is one year minimum service in Nar-Anon.

Page 11 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Area Structure



Duties:

e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the area bank account
e Works with area officers to plan meeting agenda

e Submits a draft agenda to GSRs in time to add items under new business
e Distributes minutes to ASC within 14 days of meeting date

e Maintains ASC archives and minutes for incoming secretary

e Updates a log of approved ASC policy motions

¢ Maintains a current GSR directory

e Informs RSC when ASC officers change

Treasurer

The treasurer is the custodian of the ASC's finances and bank account. Recommended
experience for this position is one year minimum service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the area bank account

e Maintains records of ASC financial transactions

e Issues receipts for contributions received

e Disburses funds to cover ASC expenditures

e Submits a written report at ASC meeting of financial transactions since prior
meeting

e Presents an annual summary of income and expenses to ASC for budget planning

e Presents ASC's proposed budget for approval

e Prepares an appeal letter for groups, as needed, requesting contributions to cover
ASC expenses

e Assures region follows current bank standards for nonprofit accounts

e Maintains post office box

Interim Officers

If ASC positions become vacant between ASC meetings, interim officers can be appointed
by the ASC. Recommended experience for each position is the same as for officers being
replaced. An officer fulfilling an interim term is eligible for two additional terms.

Removal and Resignation of Officers

ASC officers may be removed from their positions by the ASC after written notification of
non-compliance. Non-compliance includes, but is not limited to, failure to fulfill duties,
and failure to attend two consecutive regular ASC meetings without prior notification to
the chair. It is within the ASC’s discretion to accept a written report in lieu of attendance.
A two-thirds majority vote of ASC members is required for removal.

Page 12 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Area Structure



If removal or resignation occurs, that position shall be filled on an interim basis by the
ASC majority vote. The chair will call an interim ASC for a special election to fill position
until the next election ASC.

ASC Meetings

ASC meetings are held in a mutually agreed time and location. It may include participation
via conference calls. These meetings are attended by area officers, GSRs, and
subcommittee chairs. ASC meetings are open to all Nar-Anon members. At the chair’s
discretion, speaking by non-voting members may be limited. It is suggested ASC meetings
be held at minimum twice a year. A sample ASC meeting agenda may be found in the
GLS. Members conduct business following Robert’s Rules of Order. ASC meetings are a
vital link between groups and the area.

Voting members are GSRs, or in their absence, alternate GSRs, or in their absence, a
substitute GSR as described in the Substitute GSR section of the Regional Service
Assembly (RSA) section. This is consistent with one vote per group.

To conduct business, a quorum of 51% of the area’s GSRs voting their group’s conscience
is required. In the case of a tie, the motion fails. Failed motions may be reconsidered by
a motion and second to reconsider. Discussion and vote follows, and majority rules.

ASC business:

e Set ASC policies and procedures
e Develops and approves ASC budget
e Elects area officers
e Receives and discusses
- ASC officers’ reports
- GSR group reports
- Subcommittee reports
e Reviews, discusses, and disseminates information from the WSO and region, such
as
The NFG Guide to Local Services
The NFG Guide to World Services
steps, traditions, and concepts
new Conference Approved Literature (CAL)
Conference Agenda Report (CAR)
e Establishes subcommittees, such as events, Narateen, outreach, technology
services, and others as deemed necessary
e Coordinates area events
e Organizes workshops for sponsorship, service positions, step/tradition study
e Shares outreach resources (e.g., hospitals, institutions, public information)

Page 13 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Area Structure



e Encourages writing submissions to the World Service (WS) Literature Committee,
and articles of interest to the Serenity Connection

e Discusses and seeks to resolve group concerns

e Refers unresolved concerns to region

Election ASC Meetings

It is suggested election ASC meetings are held in July of odd numbered years to elect
new ASC officers. GSRs, being voting members, are strongly encouraged to attend.

When an officer cannot fulfill their term, the position shall be filled on an interim basis
either by ASC majority vote, or the chair may call for an interim ASC meeting for a special
election to fill the interim office, or wait until the next election ASC meeting. An elected
interim officer is eligible for two additional terms. Interim positions have a voice and a
vote on the ASC.

No member shall hold more than one office at a time or hold the same office more than
two consecutive terms, in addition to any interim term served.

When a subcommittee is formed, it chooses an interim chair until the next ASC confirms.
Interim chairs have a voice and vote on the ASC.

Election Process before Election ASC Meeting

1) InJanuary the ASC calls for the formation of an ad hoc elections subcommittee, and
establishes a point of contact for the formation of the subcommittee. ASC requests
member participation in the ad hoc elections subcommittee, via GSR or other
announcements in meetings. The point of contact will facilitate the subcommittee
appointing a chair.

2) In February the elections subcommittee presents the interim chair to the ASC for
confirmation. The subcommittee then drafts an agenda item for the next ASC
meeting. The agenda item is to include, but is not limited to:

a) List of open positions: ASR, secretary, and treasurer

b) Descriptions of positions and suggested experience (see the Regional Structure
section of this document)

c) Timeline for nomination period and the election (as defined below)

d) Determine an email address for nominations to be sent

e) Nomination invitation to be sent to groups via GSR or other announcements in
meetings.

Page 14 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Area Structure



3) In March, the ASC reviews and approves the subcommittee’s agenda item. The
subcommittee sends notification that the nominations period is open. Notification
will include a list of open positions, suggested experience for positions, description
of positions, timeline for nomination period, and nomination email address. A
nomination invitation will be sent to groups via GSR or other announcements in
meetings.

The member nomination process allows members to nominate themselves or other
members for one or more positions. Nominated members will be contacted by the
subcommittee. The nominated member may or may not agree to accept the
nomination. Nominations are received by the subcommittee via email.

4) In April, nominees who have accepted nomination submit a statement of
gualifications to the subcommittee via email.

5) In May, the subcommittee creates a ballot and drafts a slate of nominees for ASR,
secretary, and treasurer for the elections ASC meeting agenda, including each
nominee’s statement of qualifications. Ballots will allow for write-in nominees.

6) In June, elections subcommittee disseminates anonymous ballots to GSRs. GSRs
take a group conscience to provide guidance for selecting ASR, secretary, and
treasurer at the elections ASC meeting. The ballots will be sent via GSR or other
announcements in meetings.

The subcommittee writes a motion for submission to the ASC to dissolve the ad hoc
elections committee at the conclusion of the elections process.

Election Process at Elections ASC Meeting

1) The elections process is the first agenda item. A representative from the elections
subcommittee recaps nominees and asks for nominations from the floor by position;
in order of ASR, secretary, and treasurer. Floor nominations are given an
opportunity to share their qualifications.

2) GSRs are given ample time to consider new nominations before voting. GSRs submit
their anonymous ballot to the subcommittee.

3) Two subcommittee members tally the ballots. In case of a tie, a new ballot is issued
for tied positions. The process is repeated for a maximum of three tie-breaker
ballots. If a tie persists, the position is determined by a short-straw process to
eliminate one nominee. The short-straw process is repeated until one nominee is
selected for the position.

4) If someone is elected to multiple positions, that person selects one position, and the
remaining position(s) is determined by the next highest tally.

5) An elections subcommittee representative reads the results and then hands the
meeting back to the chair to continue with other business of the ASC.

6) The motion to dissolve the elections subcommittee until the next elections cycle can
now be made.

7) The secretary includes a signature block in the elections ASC meeting minutes for
ASR and Secretary to sign and validate for presentation to the bank in compliance
with 501(c)(3) non-profit status.

Page 15 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Area Structure



8) Signed minutes, ballots, tally sheets, and records of tie breakers are submitted to
the ASC secretary for scanning and upload to the ASC’s electronic document storage
system.

9) The new officers start their term upon the bank’s acceptance of the transfer of
leadership.

Interim ASC Meetings

Interim ASC meetings may be called by the chair, as needed between regularly
scheduled ASC meetings, to discuss critical matters affecting the area.

Non-Area Affiliated Groups

Groups are encouraged to create areas. Areas establish group representation at the RSC
and provide more efficient and responsive services. It is encouraged that non-area
affiliated groups form areas as the number of groups increase. If the group density makes
forming an area impossible, groups may choose to be a non-area affiliated group.

The region may establish a subcommittee of non-area affiliated groups. The
subcommittee is comprised of GSRs from groups not associated with an area. The
subcommittee’s purpose is to provide non-area affiliated groups’ representation at the
RSC (see RSC subcommittees). When a subcommittee is formed an interim chair is
chosen, then presented at the RSA for confirmation. A chair is elected and confirmed to
serve for one year. The term of service begins following confirmation. A chair may serve
two full consecutive terms, in addition to any interim term served.

Chair
The chair provides two-way communication between groups and the RSC. Recommended
experience for this position is one year continuous service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

e Presides over subcommittee meetings
e Attends RSC meetings
- Votes subcommittee’s group conscience
- Brings matters of misunderstandings or concerns
- Reports on activities, outreach, and events
e May visit groups providing support and direction, particularly to new groups
e Supports members starting new groups
e Helps groups understand and apply Twelve Traditions and Twelve Concepts of
Service
e Provides a current GSR contact list to RSC secretary

Page 16 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Non-Area Affiliated Groups



e Reminds GSRs to update group registration form on WSO website
¢ Notifies RSC and WSO when groups disband
e Responsible for subcommittee correspondence

Regional Structure

CCR was established in February 2014 and is comprised of Nar-Anon Family Groups
located within Central California that have determined that being in the CCR best serves
their members interests.

CCR supports areas and groups by providing opportunities to communicate with each
other, acting on behalf of their common interest, and encouraging growth of the
fellowship. The structure consists of the RSC and the RSA.

The region’s purpose is to support and serve groups within the region. Each Nar-Anon
family group is autonomous and may choose the region in which the groups’ conscience
determines it will be best served. A geographic boundary is therefore determined by the
groups and is subject to change. The region’s geographic boundary is not reflected in this
document.

Regional Service Committee (RSC)

The RSC’s purpose is to develop, coordinate, and maintain services on behalf of the Nar-
Anon groups it serves. The RSC strives for the general improvement of groups and areas
by holding regular business meetings and conducting RSAs. RSC members perform duties
described in this guide and follow parliamentary procedures (Robert’s Rules of Order)
adopted at the first RSA held October 26, 2014. Its members endeavor to work for the
common good of Nar-Anon as a whole, guided by the conscience of the RSA, and are
bound by the Twelve Traditions and Twelve Concepts of Service.

State laws require a minimum of chair, treasurer, and secretary positions for any
committee needing banking services, therefore an RSC cannot exist without these
positions filled.

RSC Officers

RSC officers are the chair, vice chair, secretary, and treasurer. Officers are elected to
serve for two years. New officers start their term upon the bank’s acceptance of the
transfer of leadership. When a GSR is elected RSC officer, they no longer serve as GSR.
To be of utmost benefit to those they serve, it is recommended that officers attend Nar-
Anon meetings on a regular basis. RSC officers may serve two full consecutive terms, in
addition to any interim term served. Interim positions have a voice and a vote on the
RSC.

Page 17 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



Chair

The chair should have leadership and organizational skills and be capable of conducting
business meetings. Recommended experience for this position is three years continuous
service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the region bank account

e Presides over RSC and RSA

e Works with RSC to plan RSC meeting agendas

e Posts RSC meeting agenda for fellowship review on the CCR website
(http://www.NarAnonCentralCA.org)

e Submits draft RSA agendas for GSRs and RSC to add agenda items

e Submits RSA agendas to RSA and RSC

e Posts RSA agenda for fellowship review on the CCR website

e Stays informed of subcommittee activities and is available for support

e Submits approved RSA minutes to WSC Committee (wscconference@nar-
anon.orq) verifying election or continued endorsement of delegate and alternate
delegate according to conference timeline

e Calls for an interim RSA whenever the RSC deems it necessary

e Is responsible for RSC correspondence

e Has post office box access

Vice Chair

The vice chair should be willing to become chair at the end of the current chair’'s term. If
the chair is unable to fulfill the position, the vice chair assumes the chair’s position for
the term’s duration or until an election RSA is held. The recommended experience for this
position is three years continuous service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

e Acts as parliamentarian for the RSC and RSA
e Assists the RSC chair in performing their duties

Secretary

The secretary keeps accurate minutes of each RSC and RSA. Recommended experience
for this position is two years of service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:
e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the region bank account

Page 18 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure


http://www.naranoncentralca.org/
mailto:wscconference@nar-anon.org?subject=Send%20an%20Email%20to%20the%20WS%20Conference%20Committee
mailto:wscconference@nar-anon.org?subject=Send%20an%20Email%20to%20the%20WS%20Conference%20Committee

e Produces draft minutes for review by the chair within 14 days of the meeting date

e Submits preliminary RSC minutes for Chair to review

¢ Maintains archives of RSC and RSA minutes for incoming secretary

e Updates log of approved RSC and RSA policy motions

e Maintains a current directory of RSC and RSA members

e Collects and archives completed Group Service Representative (GSR) and Alternate
GSR Registration Forms and Area Service Committee and Regional Service
Assembly Registration Forms

e Works with the Technology Services subcommittee to maintain electronic archives
for fellowship review

e Prepares Take Back to Meeting Information and Announcements to be posted on
CCR website and emailed to GSRs and ASRs. 7ake Back to Meeting Information
and Announcements are information and action items from RSC and RSA. This is
to facilitate effective two-way communication between groups and other service
levels.

Treasurer

The treasurer is custodian of the RSC’s finances and bank account. Recommended
experience for this position is two years continuous service in Nar-Anon.

Duties:

e At the beginning of the term, establish signature on the region bank account

e Maintains records of RSC financial transactions

e Issues receipts for contributions received

e Disburses funds to cover RSC expenditures

e Submits a written report at RSC and RSA meetings of financial transactions since
prior meeting

e Presents an annual summary of income and expenses to RSC for budget planning

e Presents the RSC’s proposed budget at the RSA for approval

e Prepares an appeal letter to groups, as needed, requesting contributions to cover
RSC expenses

e Assures region follows current bank standards for nonprofit accounts

e Maintains post office box

e Forwards delegates’ equalized expense to WSO by WSC'’s established deadline

Interim Officers

If RSC positions become vacant between election RSAs, interim officers can be appointed
by the RSC and presented at the next RSA for confirmation. Recommended experience
for each position is the same as for officers being replaced. An officer fulfilling an interim
term is eligible for two additional terms.

Page 19 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



Removal and Resignation of Officers

RSC officers may be removed from their positions for non-performance of their duties by
a two-thirds majority vote of the RSA. Non-performance includes, but is not limited to,
failure to fulfill duties or failure to attend two consecutive regular RSC meetings without
prior notification to the chair. It is within the RSC’s discretion to accept a written report
in lieu of attendance. After an officer has been removed by the RSA, the RSC chair will
provide written notice to the officer. If the chair is removed, the vice chair will send the
correspondence.

If removal or resignation occurs, that position shall be filled on an interim basis by the
RSC majority vote and presented at the next RSA for confirmation.

RSC Meetings

RSC meetings are held in a mutually agreed time and location. It may include participation
via conference calls. Regional officers, ASRs, regional subcommittee chairs, delegate, and
alternate delegate attend these meetings. RSC meetings are open to all Nar-Anon
members. At the chair’s discretion, speaking by non-voting members may be limited. It
Is suggested RSC meetings be held at minimum four times a year. The RSC agenda may
be modeled after the sample ASC meeting agenda found in the GLS. Members conduct
business following Robert’s Rules of Order. RSC meetings are a vital link between groups,
areas, and the region.

Voting members are the officers (chair, vice chair, secretary, and treasurer), delegate,
alternate delegate, ASRs, subcommittee chairs, and interim chairs. Voting members have
one vote regardless of multiple eligible positions.

To conduct business, a quorum of 51% of the RSCs voting members is required. A motion
fails in the case of a tie. Failed motions may be reconsidered by a motion and second to
reconsider. Discussion and vote follows, and majority rules.

RSC business:

e Hears and discusses region, delegate, area, and subcommittee reports

e Reviews ways of keeping groups informed and involved

e Establishes subcommittees with RSA approval

e Develops policies and procedures for RSA approval

e Develops region’s budget for RSA approval

e Drafts a slate of nominees for election at the RSA

¢ Nurtures an understanding of the importance of service work in personal recovery

Page 20 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



RSC Policies and Procedures

Spiritual Guidance

The region shall be guided by principles of unity, group conscience, and the spiritual
nature of our fellowship. Our group experience suggests that the unity of the Nar-Anon
Family Groups depends upon our adherence to The Twelve Traditions of Nar-Anon. In
keeping with the spiritual nature of Nar-Anon, our structure should always be one of
service, never of governance. Group conscience is the spiritual means by which we invite
a loving Higher Power to influence our decisions.

Compliance
In its actions the region shall be guided by with the following:

e The Twelve Traditions

e The Twelve Concepts of Service

e The NFG Guides to Local and World Services

e Current edition of parliamentary procedures (Robert’'s Rules of Order)
e Past region motions

e Local, state, and federal laws

Minutes

Meeting minutes will be posted for members review. Upon request, any Nar-Anon
member may be given a copy of the minutes. No official business will be conducted
without a written record of the transaction. A motion may be made and passed for general
discussions to be off the record.

Motions

Only voting members may make motions. Motions may be amended at any time prior to
voting. A motion to amend must have a second. Members may discuss the motion prior
to voting.

Tie Breakers
In case of a tie vote on a motion, a body of three (chair, treasurer, secretary) shall cast
one vote each to decide the issue. If one or more is absent, the vice chair, delegate, and

alternate delegate, in that order, shall replace the missing officer(s). Tie breakers do not
apply in actions requiring a two-thirds majority.

Page 21 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



Special Rules of Order

Business resulting from a member’s report or recommendation shall become new
business.

World Service Conference

The region will support Nar-Anon as a whole by sending a delegate and/or alternate
delegate to the biennial WSC. For a delegate or an alternate delegate to be recognized
at the WSC, the region must submit a copy of the minutes verifying election or continued
endorsement of the delegate and alternate delegate or other written confirmation that
they were previously elected and that their term will be in effect through the current
WSC. A regional officer, not the delegate or alternate delegate, must submit the eligibility
verification to the WSC committee at wscconference@nar-anon.org.

The WSC sends an invitation to the conference by email to the region chair the year prior
to the conference. The invitation contains the conference cycle timeline. It is important
that the region chair’s current contact information, including email address, is on file with
the WSO.

Contributions to WSO

The region will make regular donations to WSO of funds over its established prudent
reserve.

Post Office Box

The chair or treasurer shall establish a post office box as a point of contact for the region.
This box may be shared with an area if convenient and the cost is divided between them.
The box may be changed as the RSC deems necessary and the information distributed to
all the groups.

Financial Policies

Budgeted Funds

Funds accumulated from members, groups, and area contributions and other Nar-Anon
sources shall be maintained in a bank account and distributed as follows:

e RSC, RSA, events, and workshop expenses

e Delegate’s and alternate delegate’s equalized and incidental expenses incurred for
WSC attendance

e Delegate and alternate delegate mileage and expenses

Page 22 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure


mailto:wscconference@nar-anon.org

e Subcommittee expenses

e Travel expense for RSC to assembly and other required meetings

e Region website

e New meeting startup funds

e Miscellaneous expenses such as phone, photocopies, postage, and banking
e Prudent reserve (see description below)

Expenditures

RSC expenditures shall be budgeted and recorded. No expenditure over $25 shall be
reimbursed without receipt or proof of payment. Minor expenses may be requested and
described by written statement.

Prudent Reserve

The region should maintain a prudent reserve as protection from unforeseen expenses
and to allow the financial flexibility necessary to provide continuous services to the
groups. This is not meant to allow the accumulation of more money than necessary. The
intent is to reasonably protect the financial security of the region.

It is suggested that a prudent reserve equal at least three months of the region’s
operating expenses, which may include the following:

e Regional assembly and other meeting room costs

e Travel expense for GSR, ASR, RSC to assembly and other required meetings
¢ Committed outreach projects at group level

e Photocopying, post office box, and postage

e Checking account

¢ Region website

e Region information phone line

e State non-profit yearly filing

It is suggested that monies accumulated in excess of necessary expenses to conduct the
business of the region be sent to WSO based on a group conscience of the assembly.

Budget Changes

Motions that require a budget modification require an RSA two-thirds majority vote.
Bank Account

Funds shall be maintained in a bank account readily available to officers with signature

authority. Donations shall be deposited in the account no later than 30 days from date of
receipt.

Page 23 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



Signatures on Bank Account

There are three signatories on the account: chair, treasurer, and secretary. Checks
require a signature of the chair, treasurer, or secretary.

Treasurer’s Absence

In the treasurer’s absence at an RSC meeting or RSA, the chair or secretary may obtain
the checkbook and take custody of funds.

Donations

The region will gratefully accept donations from members, groups, areas, and other Nar-
Anon sources. Cash donations cannot be earmarked because of budgetary constraints.
The region will accept donations of small items, such as fundraising baskets, literature,
office supplies, and other small items used to carry out the work of the fellowship. The
region cannot accept donations of property or monies that would affiliate the region, or
create the appearance of an endorsement, with an outside organization or enterprise.

Subcommittees

With prior or subsequent approval by the RSA, the RSC may define and support
subcommittees to carry out the region’s work. Subcommittees shall include, but are not
limited to, Convention/Events, Literature, Narateen, Outreach, and Technology Services.
When a subcommittee is established, an interim chair is chosen by the subcommittee to
be presented to the RSC and at an RSA for confirmation. Chairs are confirmed to serve
for one year. The term of service begins following confirmation. A chair may serve two
full consecutive terms, in addition to interim term served. Recommended experience for
subcommittee chairs is one year recovery in Nar-Anon.

Once a chair is chosen, the subcommittee may elect a vice chair, secretary, treasurer,
and other positions as necessary. Regular meetings are usually held in central locations
or via conference call. The chair is responsible for keeping the meeting safe for group
conscience; the spiritual means by which we invite a loving Higher Power to influence our
decisions, while helping committee members stay on task. Each subcommittee submits a
written report of its activities and finances at RSC meetings and RSAs. An itemized
subcommittee budget is to be prepared as needed to submit for RSA approval.

Members may serve on the same subcommittee for four full consecutive years. A one-
year break is suggested from a subcommittee after four years of continuous service.

Subcommittees work with ideas from members and groups, with direction from the RSC,
and oversight of the RSA. Subcommittees may form service boards as they see fit to
accomplish specific tasks.

Page 24 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



Removal and Resignation of Subcommittee Chairs

Subcommittee chairs may be removed from their positions for non-performance of their
duties by a two-thirds majority vote of the RSA. Non-performance includes, but is not
limited to, failure to fulfill duties or failure to attend two consecutive regular RSC meetings
without prior notification to the chair. It is within the RSC’s discretion to accept a written
report in lieu of attendance. After a subcommittee chair has been removed by the RSA,
the RSC chair will provide written notice to the subcommittee chair.

If removal or resignation occurs, that position shall be filled on an interim basis by RSC
majority vote until confirmation of the chair at the next RSA.

Outreach

This subcommittee is a vital link between individuals seeking help and Nar-Anon members
who share their experience, strength, and hope. It is a resource to groups and members
in their efforts to carry the Nar-Anon message into hospitals, institutions, addiction
treatment centers, and elsewhere. Conventions and community events are an opportunity
for outreach. Involvement with the Conventions/Events Subcommittee is suggested. The
focus of outreach is to let families and friends of addicts know that help is available. For
more information see http://www.nar-anon.org/outreach.

Literature

This subcommittee’s purpose is to develop ideas and submit literature proposals to the
WS Literature Committee review process. This is an opportunity for members to share
their experience, strength, and hope through writing. Submitted writings may be
published in parts or whole within pamphlets, booklets, or future projects of the WS
Literature Committee.

This subcommittee invites members to share their experience, strength and hope in the
form of narratives, text, and questions. Methods of collecting writings may include, but
are not limited to, written appeals, workshops, and online meetings. Additionally, the
subcommittee supports the WS Literature Committee’s efforts by reviewing and editing
fellowship writings. For more information see http://www.nar-anon.org/literature-
submissions.

Narateen

This subcommittee implements the process for screening, certification, and training of
potential and current Nar-Anon members involved in regional Narateen service. These
procedures are necessary to ensure the protection of Narateens and Nar-Anon members
involved in Narateen service within a region in accordance with applicable laws. The

Page 25 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure


http://www.nar-anon.org/outreach
http://www.nar-anon.org/literature-submissions
http://www.nar-anon.org/literature-submissions

Narateen Process Person (NTPP), who is a member of this subcommittee, may also serve
as chair.

Conventions/Events

This subcommittee plans, organizes, encourages, and supports groups, area, and multi-
region conventions and events. Service in this way brings members together to celebrate
and share their experience, strength, and hope. Conventions and events can be outreach
opportunities. Involvement with the Outreach Subcommittee is suggested. Informational
flyers may be submitted to the WSO (events@nar-anon.org) for inclusion on the Nar-
Anon Family Groups world service website.

It is suggested that a subcommittee consists of at least a chair, vice chair, secretary, and
treasurer. While it is possible to split the chair commitment between two members,
Concept Five suggests, “For each responsibility assigned to the service structure, a single
point of decision and accountability should be clearly defined.”

The subcommittee works with ideas from members and groups, with direction from the
RSC, and oversight of the RSA. It is the responsibility of the subcommittee to clearly
define the goal of the convention or event; for example, outreach, fundraising, fellowship,
etc.

Chair

e Produces meeting agendas.

e Obtains speakers and panels (suggested with at least two years of recovery).
e Arranges for posting event flier on Nar-Anon websites.

e Provides written reports to the RSC and RSA, to include budget reports.

Vice Chair
e Assists the chair in performing their duties.
Secretary

e Keeps minutes for each meeting with special detail to group conscience
decisions. The intent is to keep the group from revisiting decisions already
made.

Treasurer

e Responsible for itemizing all income and expenses and providing the chair
with a written report to the RSC and RSA. The committee’s funds come from
the region’s budget.

Page 26 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure


mailto:events@nar-anon.org

e Responsible for the collection and disbursement of committee funds.
e The region treasurer may fulfill this function.

Additionally, recommended subcommittee positions may include, but are not limited
to:

Liaison to NA

e If the convention is held in cooperation with an NA event, the liaison to NA
will provide two-way communication between the NA committee and the Nar-
Anon committee.

Schedule Coordinator

e Creates the schedule, timetables, and names of events, directions to the
convention, and convention layout for approval by the committee.

Publishing Coordinator

e Works with the subcommittees to create a consistent theme for the
convention. Creates electronic documents for web and print delivery, such as
signage, flyers, and program brochure.

Hospitality Coordinator

e Coordinates a hospitality suite and/or hosts a “meet and greet” with light
refreshments to provide a space for member fellowship.

Registration Coordinator

e Conventions and events may or may not have a registration fee, depending
on the cost of the event. If there is registration then the coordinator keeps
track of pre-registrations and day of event registrations. However,
registration can be a flat-rate donation at the door or a Seventh Tradition
basket may be passed during meeting.

Merchandise Coordinator

e Coordinates the stock of Nar-Anon items for sale. These items might be
SESH, pamphlets, book covers, CDs of Nar-Anon speakers, and handmade
crafts such as God boxes, serenity dolls, and recovery jewelry. We do not
accept donations from businesses because it might imply affiliation.

Page 27 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



Drawing Coordinator

e Format to be decided by committee group conscience. Drawings do not
necessarily have to be a fundraiser, tickets can be given as part of
registration.

e Tradition Seven suggests we do not take donations from outside enterprises,
as we are fully self-supporting through our members’ contributions. Drawings
have prizes donated by Nar-Anon members only. We do not accept donations
from businesses because it might imply affiliation.

Meals Coordinator

e Optional pre-ordered meals may be included with pre-registration,
complimentary, or as a separate charge. The committee may decide to not
provide meals.

Conventions

Conventions are not primarily fundraisers. Their purpose is to carry a message of
recovery, and bring members together to share experience, strength, and hope. This is
often a weekend gathering of Narcotics Anonymous to which Nar-Anon has been invited.
Nar-Anon holds its own convention in cooperation with NA’s function. The invitation
requires a liaison from Nar-Anon to meet with NA’'s convention committee to receive
direction from NA regarding dates, times, and room availability. Nar-Anon organizes
speakers, panels, and other recovery opportunities for its members. Nar-Anon members
may have conventions separate from NA.

Events

Recovery workshop events can include member participation focused on a topic such as
writing literature, step study, tradition study, service, or sponsorship.

Nar-Anon members may have an opportunity to participate with local community events,
in conjunction with the Outreach committee.

A Narathon can be a fundraising event for an area or region. It might include a 7%
tradition, silent auction, drawing, or food sales. Speaker(s) may be scheduled to share
their experience, strength, and hope. Sometimes the Narathon is focused on a recovery
topic. Narathon subcommittees choose the schedule of events. Other fundraising events
may include pancake breakfasts, spaghetti dinners, BBQs, etc. Funds raised through
fundraising events shall be distributed to the area or region sponsoring the event at its
conclusion.

Page 28 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



Technology Services

This subcommittee provides technology infrastructure to the region, areas, groups, and
members. It oversees and maintains the region’s internet website; email/contacts list;
directories; meeting workbook; online calendar; website analytics; phone line; computer
support; conference calls; public address systems; recording; and supports the region
with new applications and technologies.

Non-Area Affiliated Groups

This subcommittee is comprised of GSRs from groups not associated with an area. The
subcommittee’s purpose is to provide non-area affiliated groups’ representation at the
RSC.

The chair provides two-way communication between the groups and RSC. Only GSRs
from non-area affiliated groups may vote to elect the subcommittee chair. The
subcommittee chair is a GSR from one of these groups.

Ad Hoc Subcommittees

Ad hoc subcommittees may be formed, as needed, by motion and approval of voting RSC
members. The purpose of ad hoc subcommittees is to carry out a short-term goal. These
subcommittees provide progress reports to the RSC throughout their assignment,
including a final report upon the assignment’s completion. Reports may be requested by
the RSC chair to be submitted between meetings. Ad hoc subcommittees are considered
subcommittees which are disbanded upon completion of its goal.

Regional Delegates

Recommended experience for this position is a minimum of two years continuous service
as a GSR, experience as alternate delegate, experience as an area or RSC trusted servant,
and exposure to service at the world service level. Exposure to the world service level
may include observing a WSC or participation on a world service committee. It is
important for a delegate to have a mentor, who is a member who has experience in
service beyond the group level, who can help them understand and navigate the service
structure at the world service level.

A delegate and alternate delegate do not hold office in the area or region. Delegate and
alternate delegate are elected to serve for two years. Delegates are elected at the
Elections RSA. The term of service begins when the region’s bank accepts the transfer of
leadership to the newly elected RSC officers. The alternate delegate should be willing to
become delegate at the end of the delegate’s term. In the event the delegate is unable
to fulfill their duties the alternate delegate becomes delegate in an interim capacity and
may continue to serve two subsequent full terms.

Page 29 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



The delegate and alternate delegate may be reimbursed for travel expenses associated
with the service commitment by submitting the Regional Service Committee Travel
Expense Form (included in the Forms section at the end of this guide) to the RSC for
approval.

Delegate

Duties:

e Provide two-way communication between region and WSC

e Speak for members, groups, and areas within the region at the world service level

e Attend RSC & RSA, and when invited, area meetings

e May serve on one or more RSC subcommittees, although not as chair

e Contact inactive areas to encourage region participation

e Are a source of information to members, groups, areas, and region regarding
Twelve Traditions and Twelve Concepts of Service

e Inform region of the Conference Agenda Report (CAR) when available

e Assist groups in understanding CAR motions to obtain a group conscience

e Obtain region’s groups’ consciences on CAR motions as guidance to vote at the
WSC

e Region’s groups give their voice and vote to the delegate on CAR motions and
unanticipated matters at the WSC

e Reports WSC results to RSC and RSA for distribution to groups

e Become an active member of one or more world service committees - Budget and
Finance, Conference, Literature, Narateen, Newsletter, Outreach, Policy and
Guidelines, Website, World Convention, and Human Resource Committee

Alternate Delegate
Duties:

e Perform delegate’s duties in delegate’s absence

e May assist with delegate’s duties

e Attend RSC & RSA, and when invited, area meetings

e May serve on one or more RSC subcommittees, and may serve as chair of an RSC
subcommittee

e Attend WSC, upon approval by region and WSO, to familiarize with WSC process

e Become an active member of one or more world service committees

Regional Service Assembly (RSA)

The purpose of the RSA is to support and serve the groups by conducting the business
of the region. The RSA is a vital link between groups, areas, and the region.

Page 30 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



RSAs are held at a time and location agreed by consensus of the RSA. It may include
participation via conference calls. RSC officers, delegate, alternate delegate, GSRs, ASRs,
and subcommittee chairs attend these meetings. RSAs are open to all Nar-Anon members.
At the chair’s discretion, speaking by non-voting members may be limited. It is suggested
RSAs be held at least once a year. Members conduct business following Robert’s Rules of
Order.

Voting members are GSRs representing registered groups, or in their absence, alternate
GSRs, or in their absence, a substitute GSR as described in the Substitute GSR subsection
of the Regional Service Assembly (RSA) section. This is consistent with one vote per

group.

To conduct business, a quorum of 51% of the region’s registered groups’ GSRs is
required. In the case of a tie, the motion fails.

RSA business:

e Defines goals and priorities, and establishes policies and procedures

e Elects RSC officers, delegate, alternate delegate, and confirms subcommittee
chairs

e Reviews, modifies, and approves region’s budget as submitted by the RSC

e Provides guidance, reviews, and approves region’s services and activities

e Delegates to the RSC and its service arms the authority to perform services and
activities on behalf of the region

e Reviews group, area, officer, delegate, and subcommittee reports

e Receives, discusses, and votes on group’s proposed motions for submission to
WSC

e Reviews and votes on CAR with knowledge that the delegate votes their conscience
at the WSC on amended items and items not in the CAR

Group Registration

Group registration is the means by which a group indicates its desire to participate in the
regional service structure. Groups participate through group conscience.

Registered groups:

e Have a voice and vote at the RSA

e Have a GSR, Alternate GSR, or a Substitute GSR

e Have completed a Central California Region Group Service Representative (GSR) and
Alternate GSR Registration Form (included in the Forms section at the end of this
guide), and have submitted it to the ASC or RSC

e Register each calendar year prior to or at the first RSA

e Submit a new Group Service Representative (GSR) and Alternate GSR Registration
Form when the GSR and/or Alternate GSR changes

Page 31 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



New groups formed after the first RSA of the calendar year or groups not registered at
the first RSA of the calendar year must register prior to or at the following RSA.

Substitute GSR

A Substitute GSR provides their group with a voice and a vote at an ASC meeting or RSA
for which they are registered. This is consistent with one vote per group. The Substitute
GSR will report back to the group as the GSR would. The Substitute GSR is authorized
only by the process of registration utilizing the Area Service Committee and Regional
Service Assembly Registration Form (included in the Forms section at the end of this
guide). Authorization for substitution is only valid for one ASC or RSA.

RSA Agendas

Agendas may include, but are not limited to:

e Read the Twelve Traditions of Nar-Anon Family Groups

e Read the Twelve Concepts of Nar-Anon Service

e Approval of prior RSA minutes (additions and corrections are made)
e Chair’s report

e Delegate’s report

e Secretary’s report

e Treasurer’s report

e ASRS’ report

e Time for GSRs to discuss ideas, offer opinions, and ask questions

e Subcommittee reports

e Region business

e Come to consensus on next assembly

e Come to consensus on 7ake Back to Meeting Information and Announcements

Election RSAs

Elections RSAs are held in July of even numbered years to elect new RSC officers,
delegate, and alternate delegate. GSRs, being voting members, are strongly encouraged
to attend.

When an officer cannot fulfill their term, the position shall be filled on an interim basis
either by RSC majority vote, or the chair may call for an interim RSA for a special election
to fill the interim office, or wait until the next election RSA. An elected interim officer is
eligible for two additional terms. Interim positions have a voice and a vote on the RSC.

No member shall hold more than one office at a time or hold the same office more than

two consecutive terms, in addition to any interim term served. The delegate and alternate
delegate may serve two full consecutive terms, in addition to any interim term served.

Page 32 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



When a subcommittee is formed, it chooses an interim chair until the next RSA confirms.
Interim chairs have a voice and vote on the RSC.

Election Process before Election RSA

1

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

At the November RSC, the RSC calls for the formation of an ad hoc elections

subcommittee, and establishes a point of contact for the formation of the

subcommittee. RSC requests, via Take Back to Meeting Information and

Announcements, member participation in the ad hoc elections subcommittee. The

point of contact will facilitate the subcommittee appointing a chair.

At the December RSC, the elections subcommittee presents the interim chair to the

RSC. The subcommittee drafts a motion for submission to the January RSA to hold

an elections RSA the following July. The motion is to include, but is not limited to:

a) List of open positions: officers, delegate, and alternate delegate

b) Descriptions of positions and suggested experience (see the Regional Structure
section of this document)

c) Timeline for nomination period and the election (as defined below)

d) An email address for nominations to be sent

e) A nomination invitation that is to be sent to groups via 7ake Back to Meeting
Information and Announcements after the March RSC meeting.

At the January RSA, the subcommittee will present the chair for confirmation by the

assembly. The committee will present the elections agenda item and entertain

guestions and comments from the assembly. After the elections RSA motion is

passed, the nomination invitation can be sent to groups via 7ake Back to Meeting

Information and Announcements following the March RSC meeting.

In February, the subcommittee reminds GSRs of the March nomination period via

RSC Take Back to Meeting Information and Announcements.

In March, the subcommittee sends notification that the nominations period is open.

Notification will include a list of open positions, suggested experience for positions,

description of positions, timeline for nomination period, and nomination email

address. A nomination invitation will be sent to GSRs via RSC 7ake Back to Meeting

Information and Announcements.

The member nomination process allows members to nominate themselves or other

members for one or more positions. Nominated members will be contacted by the

subcommittee. The nominated member may or may not agree to accept the

nomination. Nominations are received by the subcommittee via email.

In April, nominees who have accepted nomination submit a statement of

gualifications to the subcommittee via email.

In May, the subcommittee creates a ballot and drafts a slate of nominees for

officers, delegate, and alternate delegate for the elections RSA agenda, including

each nominee’s statement of qualifications. Ballots will allow for write-in nominees.

In June, elections subcommittee disseminates anonymous ballots to GSRs. GSRs

Page 33 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



take a group conscience to provide guidance for selecting officers, delegate, and
alternate delegate at the elections RSA. The ballots will be sent via RSC 7ake Back
to Meeting Information and Announcements.

The subcommittee writes a motion for submission to the RSA to dissolve the ad hoc
elections committee at the conclusion of the elections process.

Election Process at Elections RSA

1

2)

3)

4)
5)
6)

)

8)

9)

The elections process is the first agenda item. A representative from the elections
subcommittee recaps nominees and asks for nominations from the floor by
position; in order of chair, vice chair, treasurer, secretary, delegate, and alternate
delegate. Floor nominations are given an opportunity to share their qualifications.
GSRs are given ample time to consider new nominations before voting. GSRs
submit their anonymous ballot to the subcommittee.

Two subcommittee members tally the ballots. In case of a tie, a new ballot is issued
for tied positions. The process is repeated for a maximum of three tie-breaker
ballots. If a tie persists, the position is determined by a short-straw process to
eliminate one nominee. The short-straw process is repeated until one nominee is
selected for the position.

If someone is elected to multiple positions, that person selects one position, and
the remaining position(s) is determined by the next highest tally.

An elections subcommittee representative reads the results and then hands the
meeting back to the chair to continue with other business of the assembly.

The motion can now be made to dissolve the elections subcommittee until the next
elections cycle.

For the elections RSA only, the secretary includes first and last names of all
outgoing and incoming officers in the minutes. The secretary includes a signature
block with first and last names of the incoming Chair and Secretary to sign for
presentation to the bank in compliance with 501(c)(3) non-profit status.

The secretary will produce a redacted version of the minutes that does not include
the officers’ last names for posting to the region’s public website.

The minutes (including first and last names), ballots, tally sheets, and records of tie
breakers are submitted to the region secretary for scanning and upload to the
region’s secure electronic document storage system. After uploading the scanned
versions, the hard copies will be destroyed.

10) New officers and delegates start their term upon the bank’s acceptance of the

transfer of leadership.

Interim RSAs

Interim RSAs may be called by the chair, as needed, between regularly scheduled RSAs,
to discuss critical matters affecting the region, such as, but not limited to, a special
election, budget modification, or a group conscience on motions to be sent to the WSC.

Page 34 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Regional Structure



Service

Twelve Concepts of Nar-Anon Service

Just as freedom for the individual comes from the Twelve Steps, and freedom for the
group springs from the Twelve Traditions, so freedom for the service structure flourishes
from the Twelve Concepts.

Service is a cornerstone of recovery. Service not only benefits Nar-Anon as a whole, but
benefits the individual by encouraging the use of the Twelve Traditions and Twelve
Concepts. Service provides opportunities for learning how to cooperate with others and
helps members keep the focus on themselves and their own program.

Sponsorship

One of the most rewarding aspects of Nar-Anon Twelfth Step work is the experience of
having and being a sponsor. Members choose Nar-Anon sponsors to help work the steps,
traditions, and concepts. A sponsor has experience in working these principles through
working with their sponsor. A sponsor gets to know the sponsee’s situation and shares
their experience, strength, and hope, and sometimes suggests new ways to look at old
problems.

Sponsorship is a process that works both ways, helping the sponsor as much as the
sponsee. Sponsors can gain guidance and wisdom from sponsees. A sponsor is not a
spokesperson for Nar-Anon, but another member who has traveled the same path.
Members are encouraged to organize and participate in Sponsor/Sponsee workshops.
Members are strongly encouraged to have a sponsor.

For more information on sponsorship, please see these Nar-Anon publications.
e Questions on Sponsorship (B-212)

e Finding A Sponsor (P-101)
e Becoming a Sponsor (P-110)

Speakers

Speakers can be scheduled as part of meetings, special events, fundraisers, outreach
panels, Narathons, and conventions. Subcommittees and groups may do the following.

e Invite speakers by taking a group conscience at planning committees or group
business meetings
e Ask the speaker to provide a CD of a previous speaking engagement

Page 35 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Service



e Invite multiple speakers, as a panel, to share their individual experience,
strength, and hope

e Ask the speaker, prior to speaking, if they are willing to take questions
afterwards

Tradition Eight suggests Nar-Anon Twelfth Step work should remain non-professional. In
observance of this tradition, gifts and other forms of compensation for speakers are not
recommended.

Guidelines for Selecting Speakers

It is suggested that speakers have:

e Been attending meetings for at least two years
e Experience in working the steps

e Been active in service

e Been heard previously by other members

Guidelines for Nar-Anon Speakers

A speaking engagement is an opportunity to share in a general way, how addiction
affected the speaker, what brought the speaker into the program, and how Nar-Anon
principles helped. Emphasis on Nar-Anon principles lets others hear ways in which
recovery has changed the speaker’s perspective and helped them find a better way to
live.

Tradition Eleven cautions us to guard with special care the anonymity of all NA members.
In observance of this principle, we do not share such things as the addict's name, place
of work or school, occupation, and specific medical history. These things are part of the
addict’s story, not ours. We keep the focus on our own story.

Speakers should have an understanding of the following:
e There may be a specific topic
e There may be a specific time allotment

e They may want to bring their Nar-Anon sponsor for support
e They may want to bring sponsees to introduce them to service

It is suggested the Nar-Anon Event Speaker Guidelines section of the Event Planning
Handbook (S-320) be printed and given to the speaker prior to speaking.

Page 36 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Service



Guidelines for NA Speakers

Nar-Anon’s Tradition Five suggests we encourage and understand our addicted relatives.
This is often interpreted as listening to NA speakers share their stories and the impacts
of their disease on relatives, friends, and employers. NA speakers may want to do the
following.

e Attend with their Nar-Anon family member or friend

e Bring their sponsor

e [Focus on experience, strength, and hope in NA recovery

e Remind Nar-Anon members they are powerless over the addict

Nar-Anon Outreach Speaking

When speaking on a panel at a rehab center, hospital program, or outreach event we
never go alone, there should always be at least two members. In this situation the
audience is made up primarily of family members who are new to addiction. It may be
their first exposure to the Twelve Steps; questions can be awkward for a new speaker.

It is suggested that outreach speakers have:

Been attending meetings for at least two years
Experience in working the steps

Been active in service

Observed a panel prior to being speakers themselves

For more information on speaking in Nar-Anon, please see the sections, Suggestions for
Finding Speakers and Nar-Anon Event Speaker Guidelines, in the Event Planning
Handbook (S-320).

Page 37 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Service



Abbreviations & Acronyms

Not all of these abbreviations and acronyms are part of this document, however they are
commonly used in the Nar-Anon fellowship.

e ASC Area Service Committee

e ASR Area Service Representative

e BOT Board of Trustees (WS)

e CAL Conference Approved Literature

e CAR Conference Agenda Report

o CAT Conference Approval Track

e GLS Guide to Local Services

e GSR Group Service Representative

e GWS Guide to World Services

e HI Hospitals and Institutions (Outreach)
e NA Narcotics Anonymous

e NBOT National Board of Trustees

e NFG Nar-Anon Family Groups

e NFGH, Inc. Nar-Anon Family Group Headquarters, Inc.
e NSC National Service Conference

e NSO National Service Office

e NT Narateen

e NTASC Narateen Area Safety Coordinator

e NTPP Narateen Process Person

e NTSC Narateen State Coordinator

o P&G Policy and Guidelines

e PI Public Information (Outreach)

e RSA Regional Service Assembly

e RSC Regional Service Committee

e SESH Sharing Experience, Strength, & Hope in Nar-Anon (our daily reader)
e WS World Service

e WSC World Service Conference

e WSO World Service Office

Page 38 of 42 Nar-Anon Central California Region Guide to Regional Services - Abbreviations & Acronyms



Nar-Anon Central California Region
Group Service Representative (GSR) and Alternate GSR Registration Form

The area or group submits the following name to the region for acknowledgement as an authorized
GSR or Alternate GSR for registration with the region.

Current Trusted Servant Information

Position: GSR[ ] Alternate GSR[ ] Service Start Date:

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Email Address: Phone:

Skype Name:

Mailing Address:

City: Zip:
Group Name: City:
Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Previous Trusted Servant Information

If there was a previous GSR, complete this section. If not proceed to the next section.

Position: GSR[ ] Alternate GSR[ ] Service End Date:

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Area Acceptance

ASC Officer Name: Signature:

Area: Position: Date:

Region Acceptance
The RSC acknowledges the above-named member as an authorized representative.

RSC Officer Name: Signature:

Position: Date:

Revised 4/9/2018



Nar-Anon Central California Region
Area Service Committee and Regional Service Assembly Registration Form

ASC[ ] RSA[ ] Date: Sheet: of

The area, or a group unaffiliated with an area, submits the following names to the area or region for
acknowledgment as an authorized voting Group Service Representative (GSR), Alternate GSR, or
Substitute GSR only for the above dated ASC or RSA.

Member Sign-in

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Email address: Phone:
Group City: Position: GSR [ ] Alternate GSR [ ] Substitute GSR [ ]
Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Email address: Phone:
Group City: Position: GSR [ ] Alternate GSR [ ] Substitute GSR [ ]
Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Email address: Phone:
Group City: Position: GSR [ ] Alternate GSR [ ] Substitute GSR [ ]
Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Area/Region Acceptance

ASC or RSC Officer, as applicable:

Signature: Print:

Area: Position: Date:

Revised 4/9/2018



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Group/Area Contribution Form
Complete this form and send with a check to the Central California Region (CCR)
(refer to the Donations to Area, Region, and WSO section of the GRS).

Group/Area Name: City:

Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Contribution enclosed: $

Contact Name: Contact Phone:

Email Address:

Make check or money order payable to: Nar-Anon Family Groups - CCR

Mail to: Nar-Anon Family Groups - CCR
Attn: Treasurer
PO Box 2543
Monterey, CA 93942

Nar-Anon Central California Region

Group/Area/Region Contribution Form
Complete this form and send with a check to the World Service Office (WSO)
(refer to the Donations to Area, Region, and WSO section of the GRS).

Group/Area/Region Name: City:

Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Contribution enclosed: $

Contact Name: Contact Phone:

Email Address:

Make check or money order payable to: Nar-Anon Family Groups - WSO

Mail to: Nar-Anon Family Groups - WSO
Attn: Treasurer
23110 Crenshaw Boulevard, Suite A
Torrance, CA 90505
Revised 4/9/2018



This form can be found on the Central California Region website:

http://www.NarAnonCentralCA.org/member-services/regional-documents/

8T0Z/6/t :pasiAsy

‘S 43d 8008 St
ooueLRUIBLL JO Sl 13d 102 2y ] 1eaA Jod SaIL 00 CT U0 PISEq SI Siy ) ,, Wieddd pue WeluieL 03 1204 13d 98 [ T$ JoAUD B SO (M ‘SLEIONE U0 SIIHYSA MBN “JI3-PUB-I12aM [EATA} YIim D3er0sse
SEINIBS PUE SIS00 AJULLIEM PIPUBIXS ‘Sa] JUSWISDE|TR! ‘SoULUSIIEI! DPUSIILI0IS.-AI0IIe] PAUNUEXS VY ‘SISOD HBda) pUe SIULLSHNRWL [BNULE 8]8)12ed Of, Y TOZ Ul VY 07 BUipIoddy

:3uoyd

SSUPPY

swey

uonisod
- $| - $| - $| - $ - $ siejoL
- $| - $ $ $ $ g1
- $ = $ $ $ $ b1
- $| - $ $ $ $ €1
- $ = $ $ $ $ A
- $| - $ $ $ $ 1
- $| - $ $ $ $ 01
- $ = $ $ $ $ 6
- $ - $ $ $ $ 8
- $ - $ $ $ $ L
- $ - $ $ $ $ 9
- $ = $ $ $ $ 5
- $ = $ $ $ $ 12
- $ - $ $ $ $ £
- $ = $ $ $ $ 4
- $ - $ $ $ $ 1

asuadx3 [ejoL Bulbpo x 91w [ 80°0% 1@ abes|In Aeq / A1D [ sweN dnoid

a1ey soueUAUIEK

w04 asuadx3y [9AeI] 3PWWOY) IAIDS Jeuolbay
uoi1bay eluloyije) jelus) uouy-ieN

Revised 4/9/2018


http://www.naranoncentralca.org/member-services/regional-documents/

Nar-Anon Central California Region

Outreacn,
Conventions,
and Events

850 Outreach, Conventions, and Events.docx



Central California Region - Outreach Subcommittee
July 2, 2018

Purpose: The Outreach subcommittee is a vital link between individuals seeking help
and Nar-Anon members who share their experience, strength and hope. We serve as a
resource to groups and members in their efforts to carry the Nar-Anon message into
hospitals, institutions, addiction treatment centers and elsewhere. The focus is to let
families and friends of addicts know that helps is available. More information is available
at www.nar-anon.org/outreach

Upcoming Activities:

e Exploring new and previously used ways to make Nar-Anon accessible, for example,
posting flyers in local papers

e Updating the list of treatment centers in the region

e We will have an Outreach table at NA’'s annual Hospitals & Institutions Pig Roast
fundraiser, August 4, 10:00 AM — 4:00 PM, Salinas.

e Meeting directories and CAL will also be available at the Narathon, August 25, 10:00
AM - 3:00 PM, Aptos.

Recent and Ongoing Activities:

e Six members serve as the point of contact for speaker panels Beacon House,
Recovery Center, Genesis House, Sun Street Center and The Camp. Frequency of
panels varies from monthly to every couple of months. Some of these treatment
centers host their own family support groups.

e Meeting details were shared with 2-1-1 Monterey and Santa Cruz Counties;
however, due to recent 2-1-1 changes, only nar-anon.org is currently listed.

e Local meeting information is shared at the free Monterey Bay Health and Wellness
site. A few new people have attended meetings because of this service.

e We offered meeting directories, pamphlets and information at recent NA events
(January convention in Monterey, February convention in Bakersfield, March
convention in San Jose).

e Funds budgeted by CCR were used for the previously mentioned tabling events
(snacks and CAL pamphlets). Current balance is $354.21.

Meeting Time: Recently, the subcommittee has met about every other month.
Recurring meeting time is the fourth Tuesday of the month via Skype, 8:00 — 9:00 PM.

Need: Service opportunities are available to coordinate panels at treatment centers and
share meeting directories with therapists, faith-based organizations and at other places
people may be looking for help. Bilingual Spanish speakers also needed!

Contact:
Janet, 831-214-3437, Outreach@NarAnonCentralCA.org, skype: janet.shing

Submitted by: Janet, interim Outreach subcommittee chair


http://www.nar-anon.org/outreach
https://www.meetup.com/MontereyHealthWellness/
https://www.meetup.com/MontereyHealthWellness/
mailto:Outreach@NarAnonCentralCA.org

Nar-Anon Central California Region

| Iterature

Subcommittee
Report

810 Literature.docx



CCR Literature Assembly Report

July 2018

The CCR Literature Committee has remained busy since the last assembly. Meetings were held
every 2" Sunday of the month @ 8:30am for an hour, sometimes twice a month to complete a
project. We currently have 5 dedicated members and each bring a special skill to the group.

Editing projects we have completed: Tradition One, Tradition Two and Fellowship Review of
‘Thinking about attending a Nar-Anon meeting’. Our current project is Tradition Three.

We are pleased to announce one of the CCR Lit Com projects Men Sharing Their Experience,
Strength, and Hope was approved at the 2018 World Service Conference and is now available
for purchase in the web store.

The WSO Literature Committee is requesting the fellowship’s help. They ask for members to
submit writings, personal stories or questions. They are encouraging all members to write as
our expanding and much needed literature comes from the Nar-Anon members. The priority list
can be found on the Nar-Anon website:

https://www.naranoncentralca.org/member-services/literature/

Attitude of Gratitude,

T


https://www.naranoncentralca.org/member-services/literature/

Nar-Anon Central California Region

Website Report

880 Website.docx



l Central CA Website

All Web Site Data [/1GO TO REPORT

CCR Website Analytics 2018/2017 Comparison Jan 1,2018-Jul 6,2018

Compare to: Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6,2017

All Users
+0.00% Sessions

Visits Most Popular Pages Most Popular Referrers
Jan1,2018 - Jul 6,2018 Page Pageviews Unique Pageviews Full Referrer Sessions
2,150
% of Total: 100.00% (2,150) ! S—— / google
Jan1,20‘l7—Ju| 6,2017 Jan‘l,2018—Ju|6, 2018 905 715 Jan‘l,20‘|8—Ju|6, 2018 1,005
1,465 Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 807 620 Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 646
% of Total: 100.00% (1,465) Al
% Change 12.14% 15.32% % Change 55.57%
/meetings/meeting-list/ (direct)
Pages / Visit
Jan 1,2018-Jul 6,2018 559 488 Jan 1,2018-Jul 6,2018 728
Jan 1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018
1.78 Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 642 552 Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 452
Avg for View: 1.78 (0.00%) WTRT % Change -12.93% -11.59% % Change 61.06%
Jan1,2017-Jul’6,2017 /calendar/events/monterey2018 nar-anon.org/other-sites/
1.87
Avg for View: 1.87 (0.00%) ok M Jan 1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018 282 225 Jan 1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018 77
Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 0 0 Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 94
% Change 100.00% 100.00% % Change -18.09%
Bounce Rate 9 9
Jan1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018 /member-services/take-back-to-meeting/ bing
69.21% Jan 1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018 182 159 Jan 1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018 70
Avg for View: 69.21% (0.00%) i
Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 0 0 Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 40
Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 % Ch 00.00 00.00 % Ch 00
% Change 100.00% 100.00% % Change 75.00%
65.94%
Avg for View: 65.94% (0.00%) My /calendar/events/ naranoncalifornia.org/
Jan 1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018 181 138 Jan 1,2018-Jul 6,2018 65
Avg. Visit Duration Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 80 63 Jan 1,2017 - Jul 6, 2017 120
Jan 11,2018 - Jul 6,2018 % Change 126.25% 119.05% % Change -45.83%
00:01:38
Avg for View: 00:01:38 (0.00%) I.JMM
Jan 1,2017- Jul 6, 2017 Most Popular Landing Pages Most Popular Keywords
00:01:57
Avg for View: 00:01:57 (0.00%) skl 2 ol Landing Page Sessions Keyword Sessions
/ (not provided)
Visits by Visitor Type Jan 1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018 649 Jan 1,2018 - Jul 6, 2018 1,090
B New Visitor B Returning Visitor Jan 1, 2017 - Jul 6, 2017 562 Jan 1, 2017 - Jul 6, 2017 673
Jan 1, 2018 - Jul 6, 2018 % Chanae 15.48% % Chanae 61.96%


https://analytics.google.com/analytics/web/?pli=1&utm_source=pdfReportLink#/dashboard/GS-eiavmTQimD2y-icI5tA/a55473400w88660600p92100100/_u.date00=20180101&_u.date01=20180706&_u.date10=20170101&_u.date11=20170706/

CCR Email List Report

July 7, 2018

Overview  Activity

Audience Pastyear v
Growth Sources
+8 +19%
Audience Change (260 days) [ Existing subscribers Audienc
51 0 ©
Total Audience Unsubscribes and
Bounces 40
30
View Lists
20
10
0

Jul"17 Aug'17 Sep'17 Oct"17 Nov'17 Dec'17 Jan'18 Feb'18 Mar 118 Apr'18 May 18

CCR Email List Report.docx
Page lof 1



Nar-Anon Central California Region

FOrms

00000000000000



Nar-Anon Central California Region
Group Service Representative (GSR) and Alternate GSR Registration Form

The area or group submits the following name to the region for acknowledgement as an authorized
GSR or Alternate GSR for registration with the region.

Current Trusted Servant Information

Position: GSR[ ] Alternate GSR[ ] Service Start Date:

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Email Address: Phone:

Skype Name:

Mailing Address:

City: Zip:
Group Name: City:
Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Previous Trusted Servant Information

If there was a previous GSR, complete this section. If not proceed to the next section.

Position: GSR[ ] Alternate GSR[ ] Service End Date:

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Area Acceptance

ASC Officer Name: Signature:

Area: Position: Date:

Region Acceptance
The RSC acknowledges the above-named member as an authorized representative.

RSC Officer Name: Signature:

Position: Date:

Revised 4/9/2018



Nar-Anon Central California Region
Area Service Committee and Regional Service Assembly Registration Form

ASC[ ] RSA[ ] Date: Sheet: of

The area, or a group unaffiliated with an area, submits the following names to the area or region for
acknowledgment as an authorized voting Group Service Representative (GSR), Alternate GSR, or
Substitute GSR only for the above dated ASC or RSA.

Member Sign-in

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Email address: Phone:
Group City: Position: GSR [ ] Alternate GSR [ ] Substitute GSR [ ]
Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Email address: Phone:
Group City: Position: GSR [ ] Alternate GSR [ ] Substitute GSR [ ]
Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Member Name (first name and last initial):

Email address: Phone:
Group City: Position: GSR [ ] Alternate GSR [ ] Substitute GSR [ ]
Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Area/Region Acceptance

ASC or RSC Officer, as applicable:

Signature: Print:

Area: Position: Date:

Revised 4/9/2018



Nar-Anon Central California Region

Group/Area Contribution Form
Complete this form and send with a check to the Central California Region (CCR)
(refer to the Donations to Area, Region, and WSO section of the GRS).

Group/Area Name: City:

Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Contribution enclosed: $

Contact Name: Contact Phone:

Email Address:

Make check or money order payable to: Nar-Anon Family Groups - CCR

Mail to: Nar-Anon Family Groups - CCR
Attn: Treasurer
PO Box 2543
Monterey, CA 93942

Nar-Anon Central California Region

Group/Area/Region Contribution Form
Complete this form and send with a check to the World Service Office (WSO)
(refer to the Donations to Area, Region, and WSO section of the GRS).

Group/Area/Region Name: City:

Meeting Day: Meeting Time: Group ID:

Contribution enclosed: $

Contact Name: Contact Phone:

Email Address:

Make check or money order payable to: Nar-Anon Family Groups - WSO

Mail to: Nar-Anon Family Groups - WSO
Attn: Treasurer
23110 Crenshaw Boulevard, Suite A
Torrance, CA 90505
Revised 4/9/2018



	Nar-Anon Central California Region 2018 Elections Assembly.pdf
	The Elections RSAs
	The Elections Process
	Open Positions
	Description of Positions
	Regional Officers
	Chair
	Vice Chair
	Secretary
	Treasurer

	Regional Delegates
	Delegate
	Alternate Delegate


	Contact
	Reflection on Service

	CCR 2018 Elections RSA Ballot.pdf
	Officers and Delegates
	Subcommittee Chairs

	CCR Guide - Draft 2018-06-25.pdf
	Introduction
	Group Structure
	Group Service Representatives (GSR)
	GSR
	Alternate GSR
	Substitute GSR

	Healthy Meetings
	Group Finances
	Prudent Reserve
	Use of Group Funds
	Meeting Space
	Literature
	GSR Travel Expenses
	Donations to Area, Region, and WSO
	Refreshments and Supplies
	Childcare
	Gifts to Members



	Area Structure
	Area Service Committee (ASC)
	ASC Officers
	Area Service Representative (ASR)
	Secretary
	Treasurer

	Interim Officers
	Removal and Resignation of Officers
	ASC Meetings
	Election ASC Meetings
	Election Process before Election ASC Meeting
	Election Process at Elections ASC Meeting

	Interim ASC Meetings


	Non-Area Affiliated Groups
	Regional Structure
	Regional Service Committee (RSC)
	RSC Officers
	Chair
	Vice Chair
	Secretary
	Treasurer

	Interim Officers
	Removal and Resignation of Officers
	RSC Meetings
	RSC Policies and Procedures
	Spiritual Guidance
	Compliance
	Minutes
	Motions
	Tie Breakers
	Special Rules of Order
	World Service Conference
	Contributions to WSO
	Post Office Box


	Financial Policies
	Budgeted Funds
	Expenditures
	Prudent Reserve
	Budget Changes
	Bank Account
	Signatures on Bank Account
	Treasurer’s Absence
	Donations

	Subcommittees
	Removal and Resignation of Subcommittee Chairs
	Outreach
	Literature
	Narateen
	Conventions/Events
	Chair
	Vice Chair
	Secretary
	Treasurer
	Liaison to NA
	Schedule Coordinator
	Publishing Coordinator
	Hospitality Coordinator
	Registration Coordinator
	Merchandise Coordinator
	Drawing Coordinator
	Meals Coordinator
	Conventions
	Events

	Technology Services
	Ad Hoc Subcommittees


	Regional Delegates
	Delegate
	Alternate Delegate

	Regional Service Assembly (RSA)
	Group Registration
	Substitute GSR
	RSA Agendas
	Election RSAs
	Election Process before Election RSA
	Election Process at Elections RSA

	Interim RSAs


	Service
	Twelve Concepts of Nar-Anon Service
	Sponsorship
	Speakers
	Guidelines for Selecting Speakers
	Guidelines for Nar-Anon Speakers
	Guidelines for NA Speakers
	Nar-Anon Outreach Speaking


	Abbreviations & Acronyms

	CCR_Meeting_Directory.pdf
	ATASCADERO
	The Redeemer Lutheran Church
	4500 El Camino Real
	Atascadero, CA 93422
	Park in back. Meets downstairs.
	Tuesdays, 6:00 PM
	The Redeemer Lutheran Church
	4500 El Camino Real
	Atascadero, CA 93422
	Park in back. Meets downstairs.
	Fridays, Noon
	CAMARILLO
	Camarillo Health Care District 3639 Las Posas Road Camarillo, CA 93010 Building E - Suite 117 Thursdays, 7:00 PM
	CARMEL
	Carmel Presbyterian Church
	Junipero Street, CA 93953
	On Junipero across from Carmel Plaza. In church building on street level, enter from sidewalk/parking lot through glass doors.
	Wednesdays, Noon
	GILROY
	First Baptist Church
	8455 Wren Avenue
	Gilroy, CA 95020
	Meets in room 202.
	Thursdays, 7:30 PM
	HOLLISTER
	Oasis Gym
	190 Maple Street
	Hollister, CA 95023 Enter on right hand side of building, third door down. Contact: HollisterNarAnon@Gmail.com.
	Thursdays, 7:00 PM
	LOS GATOS
	Faith Lutheran Church
	16548 Ferris Avenue
	Los Gatos, CA 95032
	Meets in Room 15. Enter through back of parking lot.
	Sundays, 7:00 PM
	Mission Oaks Hospital
	15891 Los Gatos Almaden Road
	Los Gatos, CA 95032
	Mission Oaks Hospital (2nd Floor).
	Thursdays, 7:30 PM
	MONTEREY
	St. James Episcopal Church
	381 High Street
	Monterey, CA 93940
	Large wooden house, use back door, and upstairs.
	Tuesdays, 6:30 PM
	MONTEREY
	St. Timothy Lutheran Church
	52 Soledad Drive
	Monterey, CA 93940
	Newcomers welcome at 8:45 AM.
	Saturdays, 9:00 AM
	SALINAS
	Lincoln Avenue Presbyterian Church
	536 Lincoln Avenue
	Salinas, CA 93901
	Thursdays, 6:30 PM
	SANTA BARBARA
	Trinity Evangelical Lutheran Church
	909 North La Cumbre Road
	Santa Barbara, CA 93110
	Fridays, 6:00 PM
	SANTA CRUZ
	Sutter Hospital
	2900 Chanticleer Avenue
	Santa Cruz, CA 95065
	Meets in Sutter Room. Newcomers, please come 15 minutes early to get acquainted. Walk in the front door and head for the back door - you'll see our sign!
	Sundays, 6:30 PM
	SCOTTS VALLEY
	The Camp Recovery Center
	3192 Glen Canyon Road
	Scotts Valley, CA 95066
	Meets in Bison Center.
	Fridays, 6:30 PM to 7:45 PM
	SEASIDE
	Monterey Peninsula Buddhist Temple 1155 Noche Buena Street
	Seaside, CA 93955
	Parking in the rear. Meeting in smaller building on the left as you enter the temple gates.
	Mondays, 6:30 PM
	VENTURA
	21 North Dunning Street
	Ventura, CA 93003 Meeting is held in the Parish House, side room facing Dunning.
	Wednesdays, 6:30 PM
	WATSONVILLE
	Lutheran Community Church 95 Alta Vista Avenue
	Watsonville, CA 95076
	(831) 200-3756
	The meeting is held in Adam Dan Hall in back of the church. More information: (831) 200-3756 and WatsonvilleNarAnon@Gmail.com.
	Wednesdays, 6:00 PM
	Meeting day, time, and venue are subject to change without notice. Please visit the WSO website for the latest meeting information, www.Nar-Anon.org.
	WHAT IS NAR-ANON?
	Excerpt taken from Affected by a Loved One’s Addiction? © 2016 Nar-Anon Family Group Headquarters, Inc.

	2018-01-12_CCR_Assembly_Minutes.pdf
	RSC Officers and Delegates in Attendance
	Groups Represented
	Subcommittee Chairs in Attendance
	Quorum Summary
	Agenda Summary
	1. Call to Order, Prayer, Roll Call, and Readings
	2. Adoption of Minutes of Previous Assembly
	3. RSC Reports
	5. Reconvene
	6. Group Reports
	7. Subcommittee Reports
	8. Administration
	9. Adjournment

	2018-07-14_CCR_Assembly_Agenda.pdf
	1. Call to Order, Prayer, Roll Call, and Readings
	2. Adoption of Minutes of Previous Assembly
	3. Elections
	4. RSC Reports
	5. Lunch Recess
	6. Reconvene
	7. Group Reports
	8. Subcommittee Reports
	9. Administration
	10. Adjournment




